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CEO's Year in Review

CEO'S YEAR IN REVIEW

ING Bank (Australia) Limited performed well in 2012
amidst challenging market conditions. We generated an
annual net profit of $276.2 million, compared to $304.3
million in 2011. Our funding costs were difücult in the first
half of the year but an easing in costs over the second half
allowed us to deliver 25bps cuts to retail variable
mortgages in both October and Deoember. Striking the
right balance between the customer and shareholder
enabled us to deliver on our fair value promise to
customers.

Our Gustomeru

We pride ourselves on delivering exceptional customer
service and this was rellected in us achieving the highest
ranking for Net Promoter Score (a net measure of the
proportion of customers likely to recommend their financial
institution) of all banks in Australia (as measured by the
Nielsen Financial Services Monitor).

Throughout 20'12 we continued to strengthen relationships
with our customers, making it easy for them to bank with
us. We rewarded our Savi'ings Maximiser customers by
introducing a loyalty bonus, and gave our Onnge
Everyday cuslomers¡ a 5% rebate on purchases under
$100 through our Wave and Save offer.

ln August we relaunched our brand to customers with our
Spend Your Life Well ampaign, encouraging them to
make the right fnancial choices at each stage in life. The
number of customers who have two or more products with
us increased from 125,000 to nearly 150,000 in2O12,
showing the progress of our strategy to encourage
customers to choose ING DIRECT as their primary bank.

Our People

Our success in 20'12 was a direct result of the hard work
and dedication of our employees. The passion and energy
which our people display every day is the foundation of our
unique culture and commitment to delivering an
exceptional customer experience.

Awards

We received a number of accolades in20'12 recognising
our products and services. \Milst we are ahuays honoured
to receive industry recognition, the awards that we are
most proud of are those which are voted on by our
customers. These include being awarded Best Dlrect
Bank, Best Term Deposits and Best Debit Gard in the
Mozo People's Choice Awads.

Deposltr

Our deposits portfolio increased by $2.4 billion last year in
a competitive savings maket. As at 31 December 2012,
our total deposits portfolio was $28.5 billion, up 9% on the
previous year. All deposits raised remain in the country and
fu nd Australian mortgages.

We continued to pursue diverse funding sources to
strengthen our liabilities. Our middle market term deposit
portfolio increased from $1 .3 billion in 2011 lo over $2.3
billion in 2012. ln addition, customen¡ continued to take up
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our "fee free" Onnge Everyday product, with over 'l 37,000
accounts as of31 December2012.

Resldentlal Mortgages

Our retail mortgage portfolio increased by $0.¿ billion in
2012, in line with our growth plan. As at 31 December
2012, our total residential mortgage portfolio was $37.8
billion, representing a year on year increase of 1%.

The credit quality of our mortgage portfolio remained
strong in 2012, with a low level of anears and defaults.
Loan loss provisions decreased from $48.7 million to $15.8
million, as a resutt of our reassessment of our mortgage
portfolio.

We made a number of improvements to our residential
mortgage prooesses. These induded automation of the
loan variation process through mortgage brokers, which
substantially improved the experience for our customers
and broker partners.

Commerclal Loan¡

In line with ING's global strategy to pursue a conservative
plan for the commercial loans portfolio which was $3.3
billion at 31 December 2012, Commercial Property Finance
('CPF") decreased its portfolio by $174 million to $2.2
billion.

ln a challenging commercial property environment, as at
December 2012, provisioning within the cgmmercial loans
portfolio increased to $75.9 million (of which $17.7 million
were specific provisions in?A1), reflecting the cautious
outlook on the market. The overall portfolio continues to
perform strongly.

Superannuatlon

ln September 2012we entered the superannuation market
with the launch of our ground{reaking Living Super
product - incorporating the first balanced superannuation
fund available to all Australians with no administration or
management fees. The launch was attended by Federal
Minister for Financial Services and Superannuation, Bill
Shorten.

Living Superwas well received by customers, industry and
media alike; nearly 6000 accounts were opened by 31
December 2012, and it was awarded Money Magazine's
Best of the Best 2013lor Lowest4ost Default Super
Fund and Lowest-Cost Default Penslon Fund.

Efflciency

Our cost to income ratio of 35o/o continues to lead the
market and highlights the effectiveness of our'ban bank'
model. Efficiency improvements included the
implementation of our virtual 'Bank-in-a-Box' lT platform,
allowing simultaneous testing and faster delivery to market
of products, services and enhancements; and managing
growth wtrilst managing headcount throughout 2012.



CEO's Year in Review

Fundlng and Llquldlty

We undertook several initiatives to enhance our funding
and liquidity prollle. ln particular, we focused on increasing
our proportion of deposit tunding with our deposit to
lending ratio reaching 69% as of 3l December 2012, up
from 640/o in 20'11. The Bank continued to be an active
issuer of Residential Mortgage Backed Securities, issuing
$1.75 billion in two issues during the year.

Our Treasury function completed the integration with ING
Bank NV Sydney Branch, consolidating ING Group's
banking operations in Australia. The resulting single,
integrated treasury operation in Australia has enabled us to
increase the efficiency of local funding activity.

Despite remaining susceptible to global pressures,
conditions in wñolesale funding markets were relatively
more stable at the end of 2012. The Bank's key funding
and liquidity ratios are strong, our Balance Sheet structure
is sound and we are uæll positioned to meet the Basel lll
liquidity requirements as they progressively come Into
force.

Gapital

The Bank's capital adequacy ratio stands at a healthy
'12.60/o allhe end oÍ 2012. The ratio continues to be well
above the regulatory minimum and is sufficient to support
all cunent growth plans over the medium term. We
understand the importance of a strong Balance Sheet and
continue to retain all eamings within Australia. Our capital
position provides a foundation for long term growth.

Vïe made significani progress wiih our program to achieve
Basel ll Advanced status, and routinely engaged with the
regulator dunng 2012. We plan to complete the remaining
operational risk requirement for Advanced Accreditation
before the end of 201 3.

Sustainablllty

ln 20'12, we made progress in our sustainability program,
balancing social, environmental and economic
considerations in managing our business.

We developed stronger community links by increasing our
overall contribution to our four major partners - Cerebral
Palsy Alliance, United Way,lhe National Centrc of
lndigenous Excellence and the School for Social
Entreprcneurs - as well as to the ING Bank Foundation,
via staff fundraising, employee volunteer time and
monetary support.

Last year, staff fundraising increased by71% and our
employees gave over 3,300 hours of their time through
individual, team and skilled volunteering, a 22Voincrease
on 2011. The ING Bank Foundation also made a number
of fnancial grants to community organisations to assist
young people to tulfilltheir potential.

We also focused on reducing our environmental fooþrint,
cutting down on energy use, minimising consumption and
increasing environmental awareness throughout the Bank.
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Outlook

Following a profitable and successtul2012, ING DIRECT
Australia is well-positioned for a strong performance in
2013. The addition of Uving Superto our already
compelling product range, as well as our comm¡tment to
providing a great customer experience, has reinforced ING
DIREGT's position as a real altemative to the "Big 4" banks
in Australia.

ln 2013 | look forward to further progress in executing our
strategy to become the primary bank for our customers.
We will achieve this through providing an outstanding
experience for our customers and distribution partners, and
in hamessing and growing the talents and potential of our
people.

Vaughn Richtor

Chief Executive Ofücer,
ING DIRECT Australia



Directors'

The Directors of ING Bank (Australia) Limited submit their
report, together with the financial report of the Bank and its
controlled entities being:

, IDS Trust 2008-1;
. IDOL Trust Series 2010-1:
. IDOL Trust Series 2011-1;
. IDOL Trust Series 2011-2;
. IDOL Trust Series 2012-1; and
. IDOL Trust Series 2012-2

for the year ended 31 December 20'12.

The names and details of the Directors of the Bank holding
office during the financial year and until the date of this
report are set out below, together with details of their
qualifi cations and special responsibilities.

DIRECTORS' QUALIFICATIONS AND SPECIAL
RESPONSIBIL}TIES

Mlchael KaE, BGomm (Hons), Ghalrman

Mr Katz was appointed Director in January 2010 and was
appointed Chairman of the Bank in March 201 1. Mr Katz is
also Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee and is a member of the Audit and Risk
Committees.

Amanda Lacaze, BA

Ms Lacaze was appointed Director in May 201 1.. Ms
Laæze is a member of the Audit and Risk Gommittees.

Comelis Petrus Adrianus Joseph Leenaats, LL.M, PMD
(from 29 March 2012)

Mr Leenaars was appointed Director on29March2012.
Mr Leenaars is a member of the Audit, Risk and
Remuneration and Nomination Committees.

John Master¡, BGomm (Hons), CA, Barrister-at-Law

Mr Masters was appointed Director in January 2010. Mr
Masters is Chairman of the Audit Committee and is a
member of the Risk Committee.

Vaughn Nigel Richtor, BA (Hons), Chief Executive
Officer (from I August 2012)

Mr Richtor was appointed Director in February 2010 and
was a member of the Audit and Risk Committees. Mr
Richtor was appointed Chief Executive Officer on 1 August
2012 and since this date has resigned from the Audit
Committee while continuing to be a member of the Risk
Committee.

Ann Sherry AO, BA

Ms Sherry AO was appointed Director in August 2011. Ms
Sherry AO chairs the Risk Committee and is a member of
the Audit and Remuneration and Nomination Committees.
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Brunon Cezary Bañklewlcz, MEc (to 29 March 2012)

Mr Barü<iewicz was appointed Director in October 2010
and resigned effective 29 March 2012. Mr Bartkiewic¿ was
a member of the Audit, Risk and Remuneration and
Nomination Committees.

Donald Joseph Koch, Masters in Banking and Flnance,
Chief Executivc Offlcqr (to 31 July 2012)

Mr Koch was appointed Director and Chief Executive
Oñicer in June 2009 and resigned from these positions
effeclive 31 July 2012. M¡ Koch was a member of the Risk
Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Matthew Wade Slnnamon, LL.B, B.Bus, CSA, Sollcitor

Mr Sinnamon was appointed Company Secretary in
December 2007 and attends all meetings of the Board and
its Committees. Mr Sinnamon is also the Head of Legal,
Compliance and Operational Risk for the Bank.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

Dircctor (ellgiblo to
¡ft¡ndl

Numbor
h¡l¡l

Number

M Katz I I
B Bartkiewicz 2 1

D Koch 3 3

A Lacaze I 8

C Leenaars 6 1

J Masters I I
V Richtor I I
A SherryAO 8 5

Di¡ector
(ellglble to
attend)

Audlt
(ìômm¡f{â¡

Rlsk
Cômmlllæ

R&N
Gomml[tee'

Hcld ¡Éâr.1.¡l H.l l \tt ñdíl l{.1.1 ill.hd.d

M Kets 6 6 6 o 3 3

B Bartkicwicz 2 I 2 1 1 0

D Koch 0 0 3 3 0 0

A Lacazc 6 6 6 b 0 0

C Leenaars 4 2 4 2 2 1

J Mesters 6 6 6 6 0 0

V Richtor 3 3 6 6 0 0

A Sherry AO 6 4 6 5 3 2
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

ING Bank (Australia) Limited is a company incorporated
and domiciled in Australia. The registered office and
principal place ofbusiness ofthe Bank is Level 14, 140
Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000. lts ultimate parent
entity is ING Groep NV. ING Bank (Australia) Limited is
the legal entity. The Bank, trading as'lNG DIREGT", has
thæe operating divisions: Mortgages, Savihgs (induding
savings from Superannuation) and Commercial Loans.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND PRINCIPAL
ACTIVITIES

The principal activig of the Bank during the year was the
provision of banking and related services. There have
been no significant changes in the nature of those activities
during the year.

EMPLOYEES

The Bank employed 970 permanent employees as at 31
December 2012 (2O'l1: 984 permanent employees).

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

Total equity at 31 December 2012 was $3,234 million
(2011: $2,914 million). The movement was due to proft for
the year plus the movement in Balance Sheet reserves.

The Bank continued to hold notes issued by the IDS Trust
2008-1, IDOL Trust Series 201G1, IDOL Trust Series
201 1-1 and IDOL Trust Series 201 1-2. During the year, two
new Trusts were established, IDOL Trust Series 2012-1 on
l2 April 2012 and IDOL Trust Series 2012-2 on 10 October
2012. The Bank also holds notes issued by these Trusts.
All of these Trusts are special purpose entities
consolidated by the Bank.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE DATE

No significant events have occuned since the balance date
that would materially impact on the financial position of the
Bank as disclosed in the Balance Sheet at 31 December
2012, o¡ on the results and cash flows of the Bank for the
year ended on that date.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Sydney
28 February 2013
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LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

ln the opinion of the Directors, disclosure of any further
information about likely developments in the Bank's
operations in future llnancial years and the expected
results of those operations has not been included in this
report because disdosure of the information would be likely
to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Bank.

ROUNDING

The amounts contained in this report and in the financial
report have been rounded to the nearest $1,000 (where
rounding is applicable) under the option available to the
Bank underAS|C Class Order No. 98/0100. The Bank is
an entity to wtrich the Class Order applies.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS
AND OFFICERS

The Constitution of the Bank require it to indemnify all
cunent and former officers of the Bank against:

. any liability for costs and expenses which may be
incuned by that person in defending civil or criminal
proceedings in which judgement is given in that
person's favour or in which the person is acquitted or
in connection with an application in relation to any
such proceedings in wñich the court grants relief to
the person under the Corporations Act 2001; and

. a liability incuned by the person, as an officer of the
Bank or a related body coçorate, to another person
(other than the Bank or a related body corporate)
unless the liability arises out of conduct involving a
lack of good faith.

During the reporting period, the Bank paid an insurance
premium in respecl of a contract insuring each of the
Directors of the Bank named earlier in this report and each
director, secretary and officers. The amount of the
premium is confidential under the terms of the insurance
contract. The liabilities insured indude costs and
expenses that may be incuned in defending civil or criminal
proceedings that may be brought against the director,
secretary or officers in their capacity as officers of the Bank
or a related body corporate.

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

We have obtained an independence declaration from our
presented on the following page.



ElEn¡vsr aYouNc Ernst & Young Centre
680 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000 Australið
GPO Box 2646 Sydney NSW 2001

fel +67 29248 5555
Fax: +61 29248 5959
www.ey.com/au

Auditor's lndependence Declaration to the Directors of ING Bank
(Australia) Limited

ln relation to our audit of the financial report of ING Bank (Australia) Limited for the financial year ended
31 December 2OI2, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the
auditor independence requirements of the Corporatìons Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional
conduct.

Partner
Sydney
28 February 2013

Liability lìmited by a scheme approved 7

under Professional Standards Legislation



BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsible for
corporate govemanoe.

Gomposltlon of the Board

The Board comprises five Non-Executive Direclors (one of
whom is representative of ING Groep NV) and one
Executive Director at the date of this report. The Chairman
is a Non-Executive Director. The Board met eight times
this year with a minimum meeting requirement of at least
three times a year.

Board Responsibiliües

The Board acts on behalf ol and is accountable to,
shareholders. Board members have the experience and
qualifications to discharge this duty as set out in the
Directors' Report. The Board is subject to the prudential
requirements of the Australian Prudential Regulation
Authority ('APRA') and indeed seeks to identify and ensure
compliance with all regulatory and ethical expectations and
obligations. ln addition, the Board is responsible for
identiffing areas of significant business risk and ensuring
anangements are in place to manage those risks. The
Board also reviews the corporate govemance policies and
prooedures of the Bank at least once every year and has
extemal experts address it on best practice and
developments in corporate govemanoe, risk management
and other issues of interest and concem to the Board.

To maintain Director independence and objectivity a
majority of Directors are not Executives of the Bank.
External Directors are appointed for an initial term of four
years.

The responsib¡l¡ty for the operation and administration of
the Bank is delegated by the Board to the Chief Executive
Officer, who is responsible for the Executive Team being
appropriately qualified and experieneed to discharge their
responsibilities. The Board has in place procedures to
assess the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and
reviews the Chief Executive Ofñce/s performance and
remuneration annually.

The Chief Executive Offcer attends Board meetings and
provides information, analysis and commentary to the
Board. The Chief Executive Officer is entitled to one vote
at Direc{ors' meetings and participates at Board meetings
in all matters other than where he has a conflict, for
example, where his performance or remuneration is being
reviewed.

ING Groep NV global succession planning procedures
identiff candidates to lTll the position of Chief Executive
Officer (if it becomes vacant) and provides other altemative
candidates so there is continuity of leadership regardless
of the circumstances.

The Board seeks to align Management's objec{ives and
activities with the expectations and risks identifed by the
Board.
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The Board has a number of mechanisms in place to
achieve this. ln addition to the establishment of the
Committees refened to below, the mechanisms indude the
following:

(i) Board monitoring of performance against a strategic
plan which encompasses the Bank's vision, mission and
strategy statements which are designed to meet
shareholders' needs, regulatory requirements and manage
business risks. The strategic plan is a dynamic document
and the Board is actively involved in developing and
approving in¡tiatives and strategies designed to foster the
growth and success ofthe Bank.

(ii) Development and implementation of operating plans
and budgets by management and the Board monitoring
progress against those plans and budgets.

(iii) Remuneration incentives aligned with the Medium
Term Plan of the Bank.

To assist in the fulfilment of its responsibilities the Board
has instituted several Committees that operate under
charters approved by the Board.

To ensure that all relevant issues are addressed between
meetings of the Board and its Committees, there are also
various Committees at a business unit level. These
include a Local Credit Committee, an Asset and Liability
Management Committee and a Non-Financial Risk
Committee, amongst others. Other Committees are
formed as required to assist Management in fulfilling their
Corporate Govemance obligations and include the
Prioritisation Review Committee and the Provisioning
Committee. All business unit level Committees are run by
appropriate Senior Executives of the Bank.

Audit Commlttee

The Committee, chaired by Mr J Masters, assists the
Board with regard to its responsibility for overseeing that
an effective intemal control framewok exists within the
Bank. This includes intemal controls to deal with both the
effectiveness and efüciency of significant business
processes which involve safeguarding of assets, the
maintenance of proper accounting records as uæll as non-
financial considerations such as the benchmarking of
operational key performance indicators. The Committee
assists the Board in the establishment and maintenance of
a framework of intemal control and ethical standards for
the management of the Bank. The Committee meets at
least three times a year.

The Committee also provides the Board with additional
assuranc,e regarding the reliability of financial information
for inclusion in the annual report and is responsible for
directing and monitoring the intemal audit funclion and
reviewing the adequacy of the scope of the extemal audit.

Further, the Committee monitors that management
effectively deals with issues raised by both intemal and
.extemal audit and that the extemal auditors are
satisfactorily discharging their duües.



BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES (CONTINUED)

Rlsk Gommittee

The Risk Committee, chaired by Ms A Sherry AO, is
responsible for overseeing the Bank's assessment and
management of credit risk, market risk and operational risk
including insurance, legal and compliance matters. The
Risk Committee ensures a holistic approach to risk
management within the Bank. lt ensures the Bank
maintains its established policy of effective and informed
risk management, reporting to the Board as necessary,
and being available to meet with regulators (such as ASIC
and APRA) on behalf of the Bank, when requested. This
Committee generally meets on the same day as the
meeting of the Board.

Remuneratlon and Nomlnatlon Gommittee

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee, chaired by
Mr M Katz, ensures that the Bank's remuneration
anangements support its strategy and enables the
recruitment, motivation and retention of Senior Executives.
The Committee also ensures compliance with the
requirements of regulatory and govemance bodies,
satisfying the expectations of shareholders and remaining
consistent with the expectations of the wider employee
population.

All Committees perform additional functions as the Board
of Directors may from time to time require. These other
functions are required of the Committee by applicable
legislation or by any relevant regulatory authority. The
Committees seek expert advice when appropriate,
including when material contentious items arise. \Mth
these Committees in place the Board can more effectively
ensu[e the compliance, monitoring and review of all
aspects ofthe Bank's business.
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Financial Statements

lncome Statement for the year ended 3l Decembe¡ 2O12

Gon¡olldated Bank

emounts in lhousands of dollars Note 2011 2011

lnterest income

lnt€fosl expense

Net intecst lncome

Net nopinterest inc¡me

Totel operatlng Income

Employnent expenses

Advedising expenses

Depreciation and amoñisalion expeßes

Occupancy expenses

Tedìnology e)genses

Other expenses

Total opemüng oxpontes

Loan loss provisions

Operatlng prof,t before tax

lncome tax elçense

Prcllt for the yeer
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2,772,130

12,186,091)

3,124,604

(2,483,046)

2,7ú,736 3,124,269

l2,l8t,õ7t) (2,483,046)

t8c,t¡19

17,ü7

64r,558

20,223

tt3,lct
20,167

ü1,223

20,223

803,986

(106,158)

112,1291

(t4,{971

(t4,069)

(13,21õl

(21,898)

661,781

(1 r3,e57)

(36,538)

(r6,778)

(r2,e05)

(10,8721

(1s,7201

603,332

(108,1581

112,1?ftl

(r4,497)

(1t,069)

(13,21õ)

121,2411

661,¡146

(113,957)

(36,538)

(16,778)

(r2,s05)

(10,872)

(19,385)

(211,906)

3,318

(210.7701

(23,870)

1211,3121

3,318

(210,435)

(23,870)

395,338

lll9,ta9)

127,141

(122,8711

395,338

lll9,l,tg)

127,141

(122,8711

276,189 304,270 276,189



Financial Statements

Statement of Comprehensive lncome for the year ended 3l Decembe¡ 2O12

Gon¡olldatcd Bank

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 2011 2011

Profit for the year

' UñEãnSêd rêvaluaüôns net ôftài:

Available fo¡ sale financ¡al assets

Gain/(loss) arlsing dudng the year

Transferetl lo tho ¡ncome statement

Net gain/(loss) on available for sale financial assets

Cash fow hedges

Galn/(loss) arising dwing the year

Transfered to the ¡ncome sletement

Net gain/(loss) on cash low hedges

Total amount rêcogn¡sed dircc{ly in equþ

Total comprehen¡lrre lncomc
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ã16,189 304,270 276,189 301,270

15,3¡ll

918

(23,4671

2,198

15,3a1

918

(23,467)

2,198

18,259

28,262-

(21,269)

(27,306)

(er6)

18,259

28,262-

(21,26e1

(27,306)

(e16)

26,262 (28,2221 28,252 (28,222)

a2,611 (4e,4e1) 12,611 (49,4s1)

sr8t00 2#,779 318,700 254,779

11



Balance Sheet as at 3l December 2012

Consolldated Bank

amounts in thousands of dollars 20'12 2011 20't2

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Available for sale financ¡al assets

Loans and advances

Derivat¡ve assets

Receivables and other assets

Net defered tax assets

Property, plant and equipmenl

Total a$ot3

LIABIUTIES

Deposits

Deposits payable to other financial instituÙons

Derivaüve liabilities

Creditors and other liabilities

Debt issues

Provisions

Total llabllitle¡

Net asset3

EOUITY

Contributed equity

Reserves

Retained profts

Total equþ
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10

11

12

.13

t4

6

'15

'16

17

'13

19

20

21

22

525,808

7,445,800

41,(16,700

142,839

231,1 39

58,,185

23,717

418,t60

5,779,852

40,588,621

130,207

380,222

84,058

25,038

302,979

7,4,15,800

41,¿l|¡6'700

142,839

231,139

58,¡185

23,717

41 8, t 60

5,779,852

40,588,621

130,207

380,222

84,058

25,038

49,864,488

28,46t,900

6,995,809

191,261

393,318

10,573,352

11,508

47,406,158

26,093,814

4,46',t,289

192,982

423,285

'13,309,635

10,792

28,461,900

6,Tl8,nO

191,711

390,548

10,573,352

I r,508

26,093,814

4,461,289

192,942

423,285

13,309,635

10,792

49,641,659 47,406,158

46,630,154

3,23¡,3U

44,491,797

2,914,361

,16,¡107,325 44,491,797

3,231,3U 2,914,36r

1,334,000

109,754

1,790,580

1,334,000

17,452

1,562,909

1,33,f,000

109,754

t,790,580

1,334,000

17,452

1,562,909

3,231,3U
1E1'-tuJ -,".,. .- -19111
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Financial Statements

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 3l Decembe¡ 2O12

Gonsolldated

3l December2012

amounts in thousands of dollars General Retained Cash llow Available for
lssued caoital reserve eamings hedqe reserve sale reserve Total equity

As at 1 January 2012

Total comprchensiw lncome

Genoral reserve for credit losses

Sharebased payment plan

As at 3l Docembor 20f2

3l December20ll

1,334,000 88,286 1,562,909

- 276189

¡38,618 (a8,518)

1,213

(66,9,151

28,252-

(3,889) 2,914,361

18,259 '318,70ô

1,278

1,33,1,000 138,057 1,790,680 (¡10'8931 12,390 3,234,334

amounts in thousands of dollars General Retained Cash flow Available for
lssued capital reserve eaminos hedge reserve sale reserve Total equity

As at 1 January 201 1

Total comprehensive income

General reserve for credit losses

Share-based payrnent plan

As at31 December20ll

Bank

3l Doeember2012

1,334,000 85,726 1,259,762 (38,723) 17,400 2,658,165

304,270 (28,2221 (2r,26S) 254,779

(1,123) 
-

I,334,000 88,266 1,562,909 (66,945) (3,86e) 2,914,361

- 1,123

- 1,417 - 1,417

amounts in thousands ofdoflars , 
General Retained cash frow Âvailabie Íor

As at 1 January 2012

Tolal comprehenslw income

General resen¡e for cædit losses

Sha¡e-based payment plan

A¡ ¡t 3l December 2012

3l Docember20ll

r'33'r'ooo 88'266 t'il:lll ttt;:rT

¡18,518 (48,6t8)

1,n3

1,33a,000 t38,057 1J90,6E0 (,r0,693) 12,39, 3r23,,,3U

(3,869) 2,911,361

16,259 318,700

1,273

amounts in thousands of dollars , 
General Retained cash flow Available for

As at 1 January 201 1

Total comprehensive income

General reserve for credit losses

SharÈbased payment plan

As at 3l December 201'l

1,334,000 85,726 1,259,762 pe,723ì 17.400 2,658,165

- 30ø.,270 (28,2221 (21,2691 2U,779

1,123 (r,r 23)

't,417 - 1,417

1,334,000 88,266 1,562,909 (66,945) (3,86e) 2,914,361

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and controlled entities
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Financial Statements

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 3l Decembe¡ 2012

Concolldatod Bank

amounts in thousands of dollars Note 20't'l 2012

Ga¡h flow¡ from opentlng actlvlüer

Operating profrt b€foro tax

Adlt¡Eülìents fon

depæciation and amortisation oxp€nsos

loan loss provislons

othe¡

Taxes paid

Changes in:

loans and advances

derivatlves

receivables and olher assets

creditom and other liabilities

deposits

Net c¡¡h fow¡ ñom opc¡rtlng.ctlvltle¡

Ca¡h llow¡ from ¡nwldng activltle¡

Changes in:

available for sale fnancial assets

Net of purchases and disposals:

property, plant and equipment

Not côlh llowr from Invertlng.ctlvlüc¡

Ca¡h llow¡ from fn.nclng.cüvltler
Changes in:

deposlts payablo to olher fnanc¡al insliltfions

debt issues

Not calh tlow! from fnanclng actlvltle¡

Not cach flow¡

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofyear

Cash and cash cqulvalcntr atond olyoai 10

1,988,5115 2.492.476 1,98i¡,245 2,492,476

395,338

14,497

(3,318)

61,997

1116,./0/21

(8ia4,781)

(tt,3a7l

1¡19,08¡l

5,362

2,368,088

427,141

16,778

23,870

(e4,2't2l

(r54,r69)

(r62,256)

(386,313)

(66,83s)

48,516

2,80S,960

3e5:338

11,197

(3,3t8)

61,997

(14ql02)

lE¡lf.70tl
(13,867)

14q083

2,692

2,36g,0gg

427,141

16,778

23,870

(ü,212)

(15,{,169)

(162,256)

(386,313)

(66,839)

48,5r6

2,809,960

(1,665,9481

(t3,t781

1,637,652

(10,521)

(t,865,9a81

(13,176)

1,637,652

(10,521)

(1,679,124) 1,627,131 (1,679,124) 1,627,131

2,g,E2O (1,936,075)

12,738,2831 (1,808,254)

2,3!6,981 (1,936,075)

(2,736,283) (1,808,254)

(201,763) (3,744,329',) Fr9,302) (3,744,329)

107,648

418,160

375,278

42,882

(lt5,t8l)
418,160

375,278

42,882

525,808 418,160 302,979 418,160

lnterest income recognised for the year included $2.922 billion in cash received for the Group and $2.9'15 billion in cash
received for the Bank (201 1:$3.060 billion for the Bank and the Group). lnterest expense recognised for the year included
$2.174 billion in cash paid for the Group and $2.172 billion in cash paid for the Bank (2011: $2.43'l billion for the Bank and
the Group).

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and controlled entities
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

ING Bank (Australia) Limited ('the Bank") is a company incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The registered office
and principal place of business of the Bank is Level 14, 140 Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000. The ultimate parent

entity of the Bank is ING Groep NV.

The financial report for the year ended 31 December 2012is comprised of the Bank and its controlled entities, IDS Trust
2008-1, IDOL Trust Series 2010-1, IDOL Trust Series 2011-1, IDOL Trust Series 2011-2, IDOL Trust Series 2012-1 and

IDOL Trust Series 2012-2 collectively refened to as ('the Group") and was authorised for issue in accordance with a

resolution of the Directors on 28 February 201 3.

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are described in the Directors' Report.

2, SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

Presented below are the principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the accounts of the Group.

Basls of preparaüon

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
financial instruments stated at fair value, in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 200'1, Australian
Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

The financial report is presented in Australian Dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000)

unless otherwise stated.

Siatement of bompllance

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards and lnternational Financial Reporting Standards
('IFRS') and interpretations.

New accounting sfandards and interyretations

The following standard became effective in2012 and has been reflected in the Group's financial statements:

. AASB 20'11-9'AmendmentstoAustralianAccounting Sfandards- Presentationof OtherComprehensive /ncome'. This
standard reguires entities to group items presented in other comprehensive income on the basis of whether they might
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and those that will not.

The following new standards, amendments to existing standards and new interpretations have been identified as applicable to
the Group. They are available for early adoption at 31 December2Ol2, but have not been applied in preparing this financial
report:

. AASB 9'Financial lnstruments'. This standard improves and simplifies the classification and measurement of financial
assets. ln 2010, AASB 9 'Financial lnstruments' was issued, which was initially effec{ive as of 2013. However, in July
201 1, the lntemational Accounting Standards Board tentatively decided to postpone the mandatory application of this
standard to 1 January 2015. Based on our cunent classification of all our Financial lnstruments, the implementation of
Phase 1 of AASB 9 is not expected to materially change the classification and measurement of our Financial
lnstruments. There may however be an impact on the Bank as a result of the implementation of Phase 2 of the
Standard requiring a change to provisioning methodology. Phase 2 is still not finalised and an assessment will be made
closer to the effective date;

. AASB 10 'Consotidated Financialsfatements'. This standard establishes a new control model that applies to all

entities. lt replaces standard AASB 127 'Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemenfs'. The implementation of this
standard is not expected to have any material impact on the Bank;

. AASB 13 'Fair Value Measurcmenl'. This standard establishes a single source of guidance for determining the fair
value of assets and liabilities. The standard also expands the disclosure requirements for all assets or liabilities canied
at fair value. This includes information about the assumptions made and the qualitative impact of those assumptions
on the fair value determined;

ING Bânk (Australia) Limited and controlled ent¡ties
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Notes to the Financial Statements

stGNtFtcANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

¡ AASB 119 'Employee Eenefds'. The main change introduced by this standard is to revise the accounting for defined
benefit plans. The amendment removes the options for accounting for the liability, and requires that the liabilities
arising from such plans are recognized in full with actuarial gains and losses being recognised in other comprehensive
income; and

. AASB 2012-2 'Amendments to Austnlian Accounting Standards - Drsc/osuras - Otrsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilitief. This amending standard amends AASB 7 'Financial lnstruments: Dlsc/osures' to require
disclosure of information that will evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arÍangements, incJuding rights of seÈ
off associated with the entity's recognised financial assets and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity's financial
position.

Consolldation

The consolidated Financial Statements include the Financial Statements of the Bank and all entities where it is
determined that there is a capacity to control the entity. Under AASB 127 'Consolidated and Separate Financial
Stafements', control exists when the Bank has the power, either directly or indirectly, to govem the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The IDS Trust 200&1, IDOL Trust Series 2010-1, IDOL Trust Series 2011-1, IDOL Trust Series 2011-2 and the newly
formed IDOL Trust Series 2012-1 and IDOL Trust Series 2012-2 ('the Trusts'), which are involved in the securitisation of
the Bank's assets, have been consolidated. The basis for consolidation is that the Bank has retained all residual benefits
from the Trusts' activities and the residual ownership risks related to the Trusts' assets.

Foreign currencles

Functional and presentation cuîency

Both the functional and presentetion cunency of the Group is Australian Dollars.

--J t-r-----
, t a,t,s?Jut,gt tit at Ig ualartvoJ

Transactions in foreign cunencies are initially recorded in the funclional cunency by applying the exchange rates ruling
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cunencies are translated at the rate
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

Foreign currency swaps are valued at fair value using the appropriate market rates at balance date. Unrealised profits

and losses arising from these revaluations are recognised in 'net non-interest income' in the lncome Statement.

Gash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash on hand, in banks and at-call loans. These are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as

defined above, net ofoutstanding bank overdrafts.

Financial ¡nstruments

Financial instruments within the scope of AASB 139'Financial lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement' are classilTed

into one of the following categories which determines their measurement basis:

. Available for sale

. Loans and advances

. Liabilities at amortised cost

. Derivatives

All purchases and sales of financial assets classified as available for sale that require delivery within the time ftame
established by regulation or market convention are recognised at trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset and are measured at fair value. Loans and receivables are recognised at settlement date,

which is the date that the Group receives or delivers the asset.

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and controlled entit¡es
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNÍFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(CONTINUED)

Available for sale fmancral assets

Available for sale financial assets are those that are designated as such or do not qualiff to be classified as designated
at fair value through the lncome Statement, held to maturity or loans and advances. Such securities are available for
sale and may be sold should the need arise, induding capital and liquidity needs or changes in market conditions.

Afrer initial measuremenl, available for sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Fair values of
quoted investments in active markets are based on cunent bid prices.

Unrealised gains and losses arising fom changes in the fair value are recognised directly in the available for sale
reserve in comprehensive income until the asset is derecognised or impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
will be recognised in the lncome Statement.

Loans and advances, rcceivables and oúñerassels

Loans and advances, receivables and other assets are non{erivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that are not quoted in an active market. They include all secured loans made to retail and
commercial bonowers, inter-bank loans and leveraged leases. After initial measurement loans and advances,
receivables and other assets are held at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Secuitisation

The Bank has sold to the Trusts the equitable rights to mortgages selected for securitisation. The Trusts are special
purpose vehides that issue securities under the securitisation programs for the purpose of liquidity management and
have been consolidated into the Group.

\Mlile the Bank has transfened its contractual rights to receive the cash f,ows fom the securitised mortgages over to the
Trusts, it has retained substantially all risks and rewards of these cash flows by virtue of the ownership of residual
income units. The residual income units issued by the Trusts entitle the Bank to any residual income of the Trusts afler
all note-holder repayments and costs of the Trusts have been met. Accordingly, the securitised mortgages do not meet
the criteria for derecognition within the Bank and will continue to be included within both the accounts of the Bank and of
the Group.

Repurchase and rcverse purchase agrcements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements are retained in their respective balance sheet categories as neither the
risks nor rewards have been transfened away from the Group. The counterparty liability is included in deposits and
deposits payable to other financial institutions, as appropriate, based upon the counterparty to the transaction.

Liabilities at amoftised cost

r Deposrts a nd deposits payable to other financial¡hsfitufibns

Deposits include term deposits and at-call deposits. Deposits payable to other financial institutions also include
negotiable certificates of deposits. Deposits and deposits payable to other financial institutions are recognised
initially at the fair value of the consideration received. Any difference between the amounts recognised, net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is brought to account in the lncome Statement over the period of these
liabilities using the effective interest rate method.

. Deöf rssues

Debt issues are short and long term debt issues of the Group including redeemable preference shares and medium
term notes, amongst others. There were no redeemable preference shares as at 31 December 2O12.

Derivatives and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps and cross culrency swaps as part of its risk
management activities to manage exposures to interest rate and foreign cunency risks. The Group had a cross currency
swap in place for IDOL Trust Series 2012-2 as at 31 December 2012.

Derivatives are recognised at fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets including
recent market transactions and valuation techn¡ques including discounted cash flow models. All derivatives are canied
as assets wtren their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative.

ING Bank (Australia) Lim¡ted and controlled entities
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. StcNtFtCANTACcOUNTtNGpOLtCtES(CONTINUED)

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges
of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities (fair value hedges) or hedges of highly probable cash llovw attributable
to a recognised asset or liability (cash flow hedges).

Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way provided the criteria prescribed by AASB 139 are met.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which
the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objectives and strategies for undertaking the
hedge. The documentation indudes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess the hedging instrument's effectiveness in ofüetting the exposure
to changes in the hedged item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be
highly effective and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the lïnancial reporting period for which they were designated.

Cash flow hedges

For a derivative designated as hedging a highly probable cash flow exposure arising from a recognised asset or liability,
the gain or loss on the derivative associated with the effective portion of the hedge is initially recognised in
comprehensive income in the cash flow hedge reserve and reclassified into the lncome Statement when the hedged item
is brought to account. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised immediately in the
lncome Statement.

Fair value hedges

For a derivative designated as hedging a fair value exposure arising ftom a recognised asset or liability, the gain or loss
on the derivative is recognised in the Income Statement together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset
or liability that is attributed to the hedged risk.

Leases

Leases are classifted at their inception as either operating or finance leases based on the economic substance of the
agreement so as to reflect the risks and benefits incidental to ovnership. Leveraged lease receivables are recorded as
loans and advances wtrich reflect the equity participation in the lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the lncome Statement on a straightline basis over the lease
term. Operating lease incentives are recognised as a liability when received and subsequently reduced by allocating
lease payments between rental expense and reduction of the lease liability.

The Group did not have any finance leases in place as at 31 December 2012.

Loan loss provlsions and impaiment of other flnanclal assets

The Group assesses periodically at each balance sheet date wñether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incuned if, and only il there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occuned afrer
the initial recognition of the asset but before the balance sheet date (a 'loss event") and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash llows of the financial asset or group of linancial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

The following circumstances, among others, are considered objeclive evidence that a financial asset or group of assets
is impaired:

. The bonower has sought or has been placed in bankruptcy or similar protection and this leads to the avoidance ol
or delays in, repayment of the financial asset;

. The bonower has failed in the repayment of principal, interest or fees and the payment failure has remained
unresolved for a certain period;

. The bonower has demonstrated significant financial difficulty, to the extent that it will have a negative impact on the
expected future cash flows ofthe financial asset; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. StcNIFtCANTACCOUNTtNGPOLtCtES(CONTINUED)

. Historical experience, updated for cunent events where neoessary, provides evidence that a proportion of a group of
assets is impaired although the related events that represent impairment triggers are not yet captured by the
Group's credit risk systems.

The Group does not consider events that may be expected to occur in the future as objective evidence and
consequently, they are not used as a basis for concluding that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired.

ln determining impairment, expested future cash flows are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the
assets in the portfolio and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the
portfolio. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of cunent observable data to reflect the effects of cunent
conditions that did not affect the period on wtricJr the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of
conditions in the historical period that do not exist cunently. Losses expected as a result of future events, no matter how
likely, are not recognised.

The Group first assesses wtrether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant and then individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. lf the
Group determines that no objeciive evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for vuttich an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

lf there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an asset canied at amortised cost has been incuned, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the lncome Statement.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such.assets by
being indicative of the debtors' ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being
evaluated. The collective evaluation of impairment includes the application of a "loss confirmation period' to default
proDaDlmes. I ne loss conÍrmauon penoo ts a concepl wntcn reoogntses rnat tnef e rs a pelruu or tlrlrc unrwsc]t [ilc
emergence of impairment triggers and the point-in-time at which those events are captured by the Group's credit risk
systems. Accordingly, the application of the loss confirmation per"iod ensures that impairments that are incuned but not
yet identified are adequately relTected in the Group's provision for impairment.

\Mren a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision for impairment. Such loans are written off after
all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the provision for impairment and are recognised in

the Income Statement.

Recoverable amount of assets

At each reporting date the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the Group makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount (lower of value in use or fair
value less cost to sell). lMrere the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Property, plant and equlpment

Property, plant and equipment is measured at historical cost and depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis.
Depreciation and amortisation rates used have been calculated to allocate the cost over the useful life of the assets.

Major depreciation and amortisation periods are:

Category 2011

Computer sofrlvare

Computer hardware

Leas€hold lmproroments

Personal computers

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and cont¡olled entities
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. StGNTFICANTACGOUNTINGPOLICIES(CONTINUED)

The carrying value of plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Leasehold improvements are amortised over the term of the lease.

For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash flows, the recoverable amount is determined based on the
cashjenerating unit to which the asset belongs. Where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount,
the assets or cashjenerating units are written down to their recoverable amount.

lmpairment losses are recognised in the Income Statement.

Derccognition

Derccognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash llows fom the financial assets have expired or where
the Group has transfened substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. ln this case it derecognises the financial asset
as if it no longer has control over the asset. ln transfers where control over the asset is retained, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement which is determined by the extent to wttich the Group is
exposed to changes in the value ofthe asset.

Derecognition of llxed assefs

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposable proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the lncome Statement in the year the asset ¡s derecognised.

Taxatlon

lncome tax expense comprises of cunent and defened income tax expenses based on applicable tax laws.

Bank

Cunent tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year based on tax rates (and

tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years.

Defened tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences between the tax base and the accounting
carrying amount of an asset or liability in the Balance Sheet. A defened tax asset or liability is not recognised if it arises
ftom initial recognition of an asset or liability other than in a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Defened tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
amounts will arise to utilise those temporary differences. Defened tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no

longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Defened tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacied or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date.

Defened tax assets and liabilities are ofbet if there is a legally enforceable right to offset cunent tax liabilities and assets,
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities,
but they intend to settle cunent tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised
simultaneously.

lncome taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income are recognised in equity or
other comprehensive income and not in the lncome Statement.

Irusts
lncome tax has not been brought to account in relation to the Trusts as taxable income and gains are fully distributable to
their beneficiaries in accordance with the laws of the lncome Tax Assessment Acts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. StGNtFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(CONTINUED)

Other taxes

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax ('GST) except:

. when the GST incuned on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which
case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as
applicable; and

. receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in

the Balance Sheet.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxat¡on
authority.

Tax consolldatlon

Effective I January 2004, the Bank and other 100% owned subsidiaries of ING Groep NV in Australia have formed a tax
consolidated group. As a result, the tax consolidated group is taxed as a single entity. The tax consolidated group does
not include the Trusts. The Head Entity of the tax c¡nsolidated group is ING Australia Holdings Limited and other eligible
members include ING REDA Holdings Pty Limited and Jaring Pty Limited.

Members of the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax sharing deed in order to allocate income tax payable to
group members. This allocation is calculated on a stand-alone taxpayer approach. The amounts receivable or payable

under the tax sharing deed are due upon receipt of the funding advice from the Head Entity and reflect the timing of the
Head Entity's obligation to make payments for tax liabilities to the relevant tax authorities.

Employee entltlements

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendering services up to the reporting
date. These benefits include wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave.

Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and any other employee benefits expected to be settled
within twelve months of the reporting date are measured at their nominal amounts based on remuneration rates which
are expected to be paid when the liability is settled. ln respect of long service leave, the Group's policy is to recognise a

liability once an employee attains 5 years of service or more. Employee benefits are discounted where the difference
between the carrying value and the present value is material. In determining the present value of future cash outflows,
the market yield as at the reporting date on national government bonds, wtrich have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of the related liability, are used.

Sñare-öased p ay me nt tran sactio n s

The Group provides benefits to key personnel including key management personnel (notes 7 & 8) in the form of share.
based payments (share options and performance units). The settlement amount is determined by reference to
movements in the exercisable price of the shares of the ultimate parent company ING Groep NV and the price on the
date the options are exercised.

The cost of these shar+based payment transactions with employees is measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. The grant date is the date on which the Group and the employee agree to a shar+based payment
anangement.

The measurement of share-based payment transactions granted is determined by ING Groep NV and is based on their
fair value using a generally accepted valuation methodology. Share-based payments do not vest until the employee
completes a specified period of service being 3 years from the date of grant (the vesting period). Vesting conditions,
other than market conditions, are not taken into account when estimating the fair value of the equity-settled transactions.

The cost of share.based payment transactions is recognised, together with a conesponding increase in equity, over the
vesting period. Equity-settled transactions are re-measured at each balance sheet date up to and including the vesting
date with changes in the fair value recognised in the lncome Statement (as part of employment expenses). The charge
to the lncome Statement is the fair value of the equity-settled transactions less the amounts already charged in previous
periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. StGNtFtCANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(CONTINUED)

Until an award has vested, any amounts recorded are contingent and will be adjusted if more or fewer awards vest than
were originally anticipated to do so. Any award subject to a market condition is considered to vest inespective of
whether or not that market condition is fulfilled, provided that all other conditions are satisfied.

lf the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the shar+.
based payment enangement, or ls othen¡¡lse benetlclal to the employee, as measuæd at the date of modification.

lf an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation and any expense not yet

recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new award are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

Gontributed equlty

lssued and paid-up capital represents the c¡nsideration received by the Group. Transaction costs (if any) arising on

issue of ordinary shares are recognised in the value of share capital.

Resewes

Available for sale resenß

The available for sale reserve records the fair value revaluation of financial assets classified as available for sale.

Cash flow hedge tesenrc

The cash flow hedge reserve rec¡rds the fair value revaluation of derivatives designated as cash flow hedging
instruments.

General rcserue

The general reserve records attribution to equity from the employee share-based payment plan as well as movemênt in,

and balance cí the general reserve for credit losses ('GRCL").

The GRCL is an amount appropriated from retained eamings and represents an allocation of capital to cover potential

credit losses which are not yet identified. The methodology for calculating the GRCL is based on converting the 12

month probability of default to a lifetime probability of default. This is determined through the implementation of wñole of
life parameters in the residential mortgage and commercial loans probability of default models.

lncome recognition

lnterest income arising from loans is brought to account in line with the effective interest rate method.

Fees eamed from the origination of loans are taken to the lncome Statement immediately and recognised as interest
income. Quarterly testing is performed to demonstrate that the immediate recognition of these fees in the lncome
Statement is not materially different to the effective interest rate method. Credit related fees are defened and recognised
as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the loan.

Transaction costs associated with the origination of loans are also capitalised and recognised as interest over 4.75 years
(2011: 4.5 years).

All fee income other than that derived from the origination of a loan is recognised in non-interest income.

Gash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Sùatement has been drawn up in accordance with the indirec{ method, classifying cash llows as cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities. In the net cash 'llow fom operating activities, the proñt before tax
is adjusted for those items in the lncome Statement and changes in Balance Sheet items, which do not result in actual
cash flows during the year.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, c¿sh and cash equivalents comprise balances with central banks and
amounts due from other banks.

The net cash llow shown in respecl of loans and advances to customers only relates to transactions involving actual
payments or receipts. The addition to loan loss provision rvhicir is dedusted from loans and advances to customers in the
Balance Sheet has been adjusted accordingly from the operating profit before tax and is shown separately in the Cash
Flow Statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

ln applying the Group's accounting policies, management continually evaluates judgements, estimates and assumptions
based ôn éxperience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have an impact on the Group.
All judgements, estimates and assumptions made are believed to be reasonable based on the most cunent set of
circumltances available to management even though actual results may differ. Significant judgements, estimates and

assumptions made by management in the preparation of these Financial Statements are outlined below.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT¡NG JUDGEMENTS

Recovery of deferred tar assets

Defened tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences as management considers that it is probable

that tuture taxable profits will be available to utilise those temporary differences'

STGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

Share{ased payment transacüons

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the date at which they are granted. The grant date is the date wñich the Group and the employee agree

to a share-based payment anangement.

The measurement of equity-settled transactions granted is determined by ING Groep NV and is based on their fair value
using a generally accepted valuation methodology. The accounting estimates and assumptions relating to equity-settled
sharè-básed payments would have no impact on the carrying amounts of liabilities within the next reporting period but
may impact expenses and equity.

Long servlce leave provislon

A liability for long service leave is recognised once an employee attains five years of service or more. An assessment

has beeh made as to the impact of applying the cunent accounting policy compared to the present value of the long

service leave liability. Wrere the impact is material the present value of the long service leave liability is used. ln
determining the present value of the long service leave liability, employee termination rates, future salary levels and

additional costs have been taken into account.

Provisions for loan losses

Provisions for loan losses are recognised based on an incuned loss model. Considerable judgement is exercised in

determining the extent of the loan loss provision (impairment) and is based on management's evaluation of the risk in the
portfolio, cunent economic conditions, loss experience in recent years and credit, industry and geographical

concentraüon trends. Changes in such judgements and analysis may lead to changes in the provisions for loan losses
over time. The identification of impairment and the determination of the recoverable amount are an inherently uncertain
process involving various assumptions and factors, including the financial condition of the counterparty, expected future
cash flor¡vs, observable market prices and expected net selling pnces.

Future cash flows in a portfolio of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the portfolio and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to those in the portfolio. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of cunent observable

data to reflect the effects of cunent conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is

based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist cunently. Cunent observable data
may indude changes in loan repayment rates, prê'payments, unemployment rates, property prices and commodity
prices. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly to redu.ce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Loan origlnation costs

The Group's cunent accounting policy is to defer transaction costs associated with the origination of loans and to
amortise to the lncome Statement over 4.75 years (201 1: 4.5 years).

Income rccognition

Fees eamed from the origination of loans are taken to the lncome Statement immediately and recognised as interest

income.

Swap Valuatlons

The Group has changed its cunent revaluation method for its cash collateralised derivative portfolio to revalue based on

the Ovemight lndex Swap COIS") valuation method instead of the Bank Bill Swap Rate ("BBSW). The recent change in

valuation is to ¡e in line with ING Groep NV and any hedge ineffectiveness is taken directly to the lncome Statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Consolldated

amounts ¡n thousands of dollars

Operating profit before tax hâs been determined as follows:

lntelr|tlncome
Cash and cash equ¡valents

Available for sale finandal assots

Loans and advances

- Related pailies

- Morlgage loans

Loss on non-Fading deñvativesr

Total lntc¡e¡t lncomc

lntorrat cxpcnro
Deposils - other persons or corporations

Deposits payable to other f nancial institt¡tions

- Related bodles coDorate

- Other persons or corporations

Debt issues

- Related bodies corporate

- Other peæons or corporations

(Gain)noss on norÈtrad¡ng derivativesi

Other interest expense

Totãl ¡ntar€si ar¡rcnso

Not lnterr.t lncomo

No!Þlnloroat lncomc
Account Ëes
Management and service fees

Dlscñargo fees and penallies

Gain from sale of available for salê lTnandal assels

Loss from rcpurchase ofdebt seq.¡dües

Cash fow hedge inefiecliveness

Fees and commisslons

O{her

Net non-¡nterrot lncome

Tot¡l opcretlng lncome

2.7t2.130 3j24,601 2,7U,736 3,124,269

t,289,979 1,285,851

1ô,677

305,627

21,039

2,62,2,7ígt

l92.ta8t

6,874

358,1 54

22,625

2,778,125

u1.1741

6,874

358,154

21,039 22,625

2,517,34t 2,777,790

f92.¡1401 ø1|1741

1,280,979

124072
10õ,t70

5a'¡Oo

670,71E

(6/3,6931

5.ait9

1,285,851

101,594

222,879

71,600

769,564

26,203

5,355

122,7æ

105,170

61,a08

670,718
(66,899)

5.,til9

101,594

222,879

7t,600
769,564

26,203

5,355

2,f86,091 4,+OùrU.rO ¿, lO lrÐ' r ¿¡roJ,wo

586.3:¡9 641,558 58:¡.t85 641,223

13,596 12,722 13,595

23? 301 237

3,7lll
7,98:¡

(871

86
(3,6it61 (2,996) (3,635)

14.238ì 1.9ü fl.718l

5,,180 3,7U
3,140 7,983
(245) (871

(83) 86

12,722

301

5,480

3,140

(2451

(83)

(2,ee6)
't.904

17,ú7 20,223 20,1gl 20,223

661,781

I Gains and losses on non-trading derivatives have been attributed to interest income or interest expense based on the nature ofthe underlying
items hedged.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. PROFTT FROM ORDTNARY ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Con¡olldated

amounts in thousands ofdollars 2012 2011 2012 20'11

Opcratlng oxp.n...
-- EïùplóFêíifè'ipeñ5eð

Wages and salaries

Superannualion

Shar+based peyment plan

Wod<ers compensation

Other employee costs

Adwrtising gxpenses

Deprcdatlon and amortlsation expenses

Computer hardwaro

Computer sofrware

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehides

Ocanpancy expenses

Tedrnology expenses

Other expenses

Profeseional services

Stationery and prlntlng

Managemeni cosis

- Parcnt company

- Related entities

Telephone and communication

Other

Total opentlng oxponse!

Loan lolr prcvblons

Collective provisions

Speciffc provisions

Totát loan tors provlslono 2

90,73Ù

8,082

1,t13

289

6,779

12,121'

5,290

7.1*
1,688

l8
14,089

13,216

6,193

3,to

6,311

35

1,167

99,008

7,773

1,416

420

5,3401

36,538

6,087

8,756

1,919

16

12,905

10,872

5,378

279

5,383

59

3,870

90,735

8,082

1,nE

289

5,77Ít

12,129

5,299

7,1{
1,688

18

l¡1,089

13,216

0,193

345

0,311

35

1,187

99,008

7,773

1,416

420

5,3401

36,538

6,087

8,756

r,919

f6

12,905

10,872

5,378

279

5,383

59

3,870

¡t,g6? 4,7511 a.20t 4,416'

210.770

(23,032)

19.711

5,600

18,270

(23,tt321

19;711

5,600

't8,270

t 
Certain redassifications have been made in the comparative year (within operating expenses) to more accurately reflect the nature of lhe

expenses incilned.

2 For the year ended 3l December 2012 the Group recognised $3.3 million in loan loss provision income (201 1: $23.9 million expense).

The loan ioss provision income for the year is primarily attributable to a $24.6 million reduction of the colledive provision in the residential

mortgage portiolio offset by g17.7 million in individual specific proúsions for impaired facilities within the commercial loans portfolio and

$f .4 mill¡o;r in colleclive prôvisions within the commercial loans portfolio. The remaining amount is a combination of specific and collec{ive

provisions for the retail portfolio.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. AVERAGE BALANCE AND RELATED INTEREST

The following table shows the average balance for each of the major categories of interest bearing assets and liabilities,

the amount of interest revenue or expense and the average interest rate. Average balances are calculated from monthly

balances unless otherwise disclosed.

Gon¡olld¡ted
Avertgo

balancc lor
Averego Average
¡rtclor balanccfor

Average
rate for

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 lntcrust 2012 2011 lnterest 201'l

lntert|t ¡ncomc

Cash and cash equlvalents

Available for sale fnandal assets

Loans and advances

lnûorrat cxpcnra

Deposite

Deposits payable to finandal instlh¡tlons

IÞbt lseues

Not.ycrrg. b.lanco and nlrtcd lntett¡t

112,UE 16,677

0,608,659 n5,8æ
4t.280.382 2.480.907

146,447 6,874

6,678,202 353,248
3.77%
+17%

4.69%

5.29o/o

6.80o/o6.01% 40,639,276 2,764,482

48,281,689 2,772,1ËlO

ní61,616 1,29õ,418

6,269,293 230,212
12.687.¡3:13 660.a31

6.1|ryD 47,463,925 3,124,6U

L77% 24,801,520 1,288,630

1t70h 5,272,761 325,174

&21olo 11,214,613 869'242

6,58%

5.20o/o

6.'l7o/o

6.'.120/o

a6,108,U2 2,lEo,llgl |.860lo 44,288,894 2,483,ø6 5.61%

3,175,031 641,558

Bank
Avcrage Avcrage Average

balance for rate for balance for
Average

rate for
âmôunts ¡n thousands ofdollars 2012 ¡ntoÞst 2012 2011 lnterest 2011

lnterrlt lncome

Cash and cash equ¡vel€nts

Available for sale financial assels

Loans and advances

lnlâlr8t cxpcn¡a

Deposits
Deposits payable to fnancial insütt¡tions

Debt issues

Not.yortge balanco and tohted lntolrlt

211,716 13,283

6,608,659 n6,8lr8
+u% 146,417 6,874

+17% 6,678,202 353,248

41.260.382 2,176,617 6.00% 40,639,276 2,7æ,147

4.690/o

5.29o/o

6.80%

48,1¡fi1,067 2,7ü,736

n,151.616 1,296,111

5,¡107,826 2n,928

tt1% 47,463,925 3,124,269

L7?% 24,801,520 I,288,630

121% 5,272,761 325,174

6.58%

5.2ïo/o

6.17o/o

6.12o/o12.687¡3:1 658.22ô 5.19% 14,214,613 869,242

a6,2,|;6,77a 2,181,671 +82'/. 44,288,894 2,483'046 5.61%

2.898.28:t 583.165

lnterest income or expense on derivative products has been attributed to the underlying hedged asset and liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Gonsolid¡ted Bank

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 201'l 2012

lncome Stalement

Cunent income tax
Defened income tax

lncome tax expenre mpoiled ln lncome Stetoment

Statement of Comprehensive lncome

Defered income tax
Revaluation of cash fow hedge

Revaluation of available for selo flnanc¡al essets

Income t x oxpensel(cttdlt) ncognbod In othor
compruhenrlve lncome

Reconciliation of pdma facle lncome tax expense on
accountin¡i profrt before income tax elgense:

Operating profit before tax

Prlma facie ¡ncome lax on operating profit at 30%
(2011:30%)

lncome Tax otær provided in pdor yearc

Efreds of amounts whidt are not dedudible

Income t¡x oxpento opoÉed In lncorno Statomont

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and controlled entities
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. llrrZq4 137,934 111,794 137,934

7.356 (15,063) 7,36s (Ë,0q9L

119.149 122,871 l19,la9 122,871

11,261 (11,7021 11,261 (1't,7021

395,338

ll8,60l
(rs0)
7U

427,141

128,142
(5,543)

272

395,338

118,601

(re8)
7U

427,14',1

128,142
(5,543)

272



Notes to the Financial Statements

5. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Consolldatcd
Balance Sheet

Consol¡datod
lncome Statement

Bank Bank
Balance Shcet lncome Statoment

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 201',l 2012 2011 2012 20'11 201'.!

Defened income lax at 3l December
relatcr to lhe followitB:

Defcned tax lhbllitlc¡
Defened lending expenses

Revaluaüon of fnanclal lnstruments

Revaluaüon of avallable for sale
finandal assets

Revalualion of fair value hedge

Other

Tot¡l dcfornd tar llabllltl¡e

Set ofrof taxr

ilot dcfenrd tar llablllücc

Doûcrrd t¡r.!¡eû¡
Deprcdaüon and amortlsaüon
expenEes

Provisions for impaiment

Defered lending income

Revaluaüon of available for sale
fnancial assets

Revaluaüon ofcash frow hedge

Accn¡ed oxpenses

Provislons

Other

Tot¡l dcfonud tar.¡rett bofoÞ lct
oll

Set ofr of laxr

Net dofoÍld t¡x.t!û

D.úontd lncome tax charge,
(beneft)

21,998 22,252 12611

9rr 'r,366 (455)

2.111 3,212 (1,071)

25i¡

3,084 2,9U lr00)
27.191 32,628 6,136

3,37¡1 9,391 6,017

1, 2 8,038 lnl)
11,620 28,757 26

23,760 22,116 (1,634)
a tEq a taa ttaRlt- .e,

wl
8,f,682 111,782

1.117

(151)

(4,70e)

(r,998)

813 1,, 2 8,038

(25\ 17,620 28,797

(4,983) 23:t6O 22,116

(415) 3,453 3,238

280

8a,682 1',1l,782

58185 84,058

3,084 zgu (r00) (r51)

n,ßl 32,628 6,13ô (4,709)

3,371 9,391 6,017 (1,998)

623

(455)

(1,084)

(1,071)

(r,888)

21,998

911

2il;

22,252

1,366

3,212

894

623

(455)

(1,084)

(1,07r)

(1,888)

12511

({551

(1,071)

263

12711 813

28 (25)

ll,63,l) (4,983)

ttlßt /¿lÃìr''-,
@l 280

7,365 (15,063) '7,355 (15,063)

I Defened tax assets and liabilities are set ofr where they relate to income tax levied by the same taxet¡on authority on either lhe same

taxable entity or difrerent taxable ent¡ties w¡thin the same taxable group.

Deferred tax asseF will only be recognlsed if:

a) future assessable income and capital gain is derived of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit to be

realised; and

b) the conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislalion continue to be complied with.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Tax consolldatlon
The Bank and other 100% owned subsidiaries of ING Groep NV in Australia have formed a tax consolidated group with

effect from I January 2OO4 and are taxed as a single entity from that date. The tax consolidated group does not indude
the Trusts. Members of the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax sharing deed in order to allocate income tax
payable to group members. This allocation is calc¡lated on a stand-alone taxpayer approach. The amounts receivable or

þayable unðer the tax sharing deed are due upon rece¡pt of the funding advice from the Head Entity, which is issued as

loón as practicable afier the end of each financial year. The Head Entity may also require payment of interim funding

amounts to assist with its obligations to pay tax instalments.

Franking account
As the Bank is a member of the tax consolidated group, all of the Bank's franking credits are held by the Head Entity. As a
result and in accordance with an agreement between the Bank and the Head Entity, it is anticipated that franking øedits
generated by past and tuture tax payments by the Bank will be assumed by the Head Entity.

Taxation of Flnanclal Arrangements (TOFA)

The tax consolidated group adopted the new TOFA regime ftom I January 201 1. The regime intends to align the tax and

accounting recognitioñ and measurement of financial anangements and their related f,ows. Following adoption, deferred

tax balances for existing financial anangements are being reversed over a four year period. There is no significant impacl
on the deferied tax balances for the Bank.

The Trusts did not adopt the new TOFA regime, flnancial anangements in the Trusts will be accounted for under the
accruals or realisation method.

7, SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLAN

Employee share option plan

Share options were granted to key personnel by the ultimate parent company ING Groep NV during the year. These

options are exercisable 3 years from the issue date. All options must be exercised by no later than 10 years from the issue

date.

Employee performance units plan

During the year key personnel were issued with performance units. These performance units vest after 3 years, provided

that thl emþloyee remains in the Bank's employment. The awarded shares will be multiplied by a certain factor that is
dependent upon ING Groep NVs total shareholders retum compared to a peer group of 19 other financial institutions.

The expenses related to share$ased payments are recognised in note 4 as part of employee expenses. The following

table illustrates the number ("No") and weighted average exercise prices ('WAEP') in Euro of, and movements in, share

options issued during the year.

Share ootlons 2012 - No 2012 -WAEP 20ll -No 20ll -WAEP

Outstanding al the beginning oflhe year

Lapsed during lhe year

Transfened dudng the year

Outltandlng at the end of the yoer

Exorcl¡able at the end of fhe year

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and controlled entit¡es
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172,2{ €12.75 462,622 C12.04

351,861 eú.57 230,309 €18.87

182,622

(26,982)

35,594

e12.01

€4.56

€15.94

502,433

(20,760)

(19,051)

€11.87

e13.24

€6.18
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Notes to the Financial Statements

7. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

The following tables illustrate the number ('No") and weighted average grant prices ('WAGP') in Euro ol and movements
in, performance units issued during the year.

Polfomance unlt! 2012 - No 2012 -WAGP 20ll . No 201'l -WAGP

Outstanding at the beginn¡ng of the year

Granted dudng üe year

Lapsed dudng the year

Vested during the year

TransËred during the year

Outrt ndlng.ttDc.nd otthc ye.l

220,122

90,025

(t06,614)

€8.09

€6.58

€8.05

131,034

126,460

(3,100)

(21,2051

€9.29

€9.36

€2.83

ç2',t.o2

€10.04s6,766 €9.ø (9,767)

The outstanding balances of share options as at 31 December 2012 are:

Yorr ol Grânt Number of Optlons Exerclse Prlce

2003

20u
2005

2008

2007

2008

2009

2010

Tot¡l

5,863

14,290

43,016

38,139

44,760

105,106

101,664

119,396

€9.71

€14.37

€17.88

€25.16

e24.72

€16.66

€2.90
g/.35

472 e12.75

All options are granted in the ultimate parent entity, ING Groep NV and are exercisable 3 years from the issue date at the
exercise price noted above.

The outstanding balances of performance units as at 31 December 2012 are'.

Year ol G¡ant
Number of

Peilormance Unlt¡

2010

2011

2012

Totsl

123,495

83,808

84,296

€9.56

€9.36

€6.58

All performance un¡ts are granted in the ultimate parent entity, ING Groep NV and vest 3 years from the issue date at the
exercise price noted above.

The fair value of share options and performance units have been determined using a Monte Carlo simulation taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted. This model takes the risk free interest rate
into account (ranging Írom 2.02o/o lo 4.620/o), as well as the expected life of the options granted (from 5 years to 9 years),

the exercise price, the cunent share price (EUR 2.90 - EUR 26.05), the expected volatility of the certificates of ING Group
shares (25% - 84o/ol and the expected dividend yield (0.94% to 8.99%). The fair value of the options is recognised as an

expense under employment expenses and is allocated over the vesting period of the instruments.

Share options have a weighted average contractual maturity of 7.7 years while performance units have a weighted
average c¡ntractual maturity of 1.5 years. The weighted average remaining contractual life for share options outstanding is
5.2 years.

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and controlled entities
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COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The key management personnel of the Bank during the year were:

Speclfled Execuüves:
Glenn Lawrence Baker

Lisa Dominique Claes

Bart Frans Maarten Hellemans

Andrew David Henderson

Robert Hendriks

John Philip Moore

Brett Alexander Morgan

Patricia Anne Myers

Speclfled Dlrcctors:
Brunon Cezary Bartkiewicz

Michael Katz

Donald Joseph Koch

Amanda Lacaze
John Masters

Vaughn Nigel Richtor

Ann Sherry AO

Comelis Petrus Adrianus Joseph Leenaars

Chief Financial Officer

Executive Director, Customer Delivery

Chief Risk Officer
Chief lnformation Officer
Executive Director, Human Resources

Executive Director, Commercial Property Finance

Executive Director, Customer Proposition (until 9 November 2012)
Chief Operating Officer

Direc{or (Non-Executive) (resigned 29 March 2012)

Director (Non-Executive)

Direc{or and Chief Executive Officer (resigned 31 July 2012)

Director (Non-Executive)

Director (Non-Executive)

Direclor (Non-Executive) and Chief Executive Ofñcer from 1 August 2012

Director (Non-Executive)

Director (Non-Executive) (appointed 29 March 2012)

The compensation paid or payable to key management personnel of the Bank for the year:

amounts in thousands of dollars 201'l

Short-term employee benefits

Olher long-tem benefits

Sh¡irebased payments

Total compcnratlon 6,lx¡8

Employees were not entitled to any other payments or benefits other than the ones disclosed in notes 7 , 8 and 29.

9. AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

Con¡olldated

+11A
730

890

4,413
631

961

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 20112011 2012

Amounts paid or due and payable for audit and review oflhe
linanclal repoí by Emst & Young

Amounts paid or due and payable for other services to Emst &
Young:

Accounting and æpoiling services

Regulatory services

Texetion services

Olhe¡ seruices

Totrl

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and controlled entities
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716 932

14

353

231

124

718

t08
212
92

932

't4

353

23'l

124

108

212
92

1,168 1,654 I,158 I,654
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Notes to the Financial Statements

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Consolldatod B¡nk

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 20'11 2012 2011

Cash and ¡lquid assets

Cash equivalents duo from other fnandal institt¡üons

Tot¡¡l cúh end c¡¡h cqult¡¡lo¡tt¡

11, AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

2l,8At
503,965

38,008

380,152

21,81X'

281,136

38,008

380,1 52

525,800 418,160 3ttit,979 418,160

Consolldated Bank

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 2011 2012 2011

Floating rate notes

Trcasury notes

D¡scount sed¡riües

Corporate bonds

Coveæd bonds

Govemment bonds

Morlgage backed sect¡¡iües

Olher securities

Total lvallrble for ¡¡lo llnanclal acretl

taturlty analyrl¡ of ¡vall¡blo for ¡¡le flnanclal a¡¡et¡
Not longer than 3 months

Longer than 3 months and not longer than I year

Longer than I year and not longer lhan 5 years

No maturity specified

lotal avallable lor ¡¡le flnanclal a¡sot¡

8E9,379

229,126

3,395,829

202,U1

189,6t 4

2,371.131

l8¿89r

1.316,683

1,131,206

I,000,2.{3

2,067,269

262,563

1,088

889,379 't,316,683

?,29,126

3,395,829 I ,131 ,206

202,il1 1,000,2.f3

l69,6ft¡l

2,111,131 2,067,269

187,89t 262,563

- 1,888

¿,L5,800 5,779,852 7,tt5,800 5,779,852

3,037,504 989,225
a taa ãu õ^1 1^ò¡r,tvtgrr outr,uo

2,692,119 3,987,036

- 1,888

7,¡l¡15,800 5,779,852 7,t145,3¡o 5,779,852

Wth the exception of mortgage backed securities where cash flows are determined by reference to the weighted average
life, availablq for sale financial assets are payable at maturity and have no significant terms and conditions that may affect
the amount, timing or certainty of future cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

12. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Gon¡olldated Bank

amounts in thousands of dollars 20't1 2011

Retail loans

Commerdal loens

olhèr lóans - parcnt enúty

- other financial institutions

Gro¡¡ loen¡ and advance¡

Speciñc provision for lmpairment

Collective provlsion for impairment

Total loan¡ lnd advancor

¡Lturtty urlyrlr of to¡ns and .dvances

Not longer than 3 monürs

Longer than 3 monlhs and not longer than I year

Longer lhan 1 year and not longer than 5 years

Longer than 5 years

No maturity spedfled

Grc!¡ loen! ¡nd ¡dv¡nces

17;t8,.,28o

t,297,197
' 100,000

378,910

37,431 ,5t l
3,084,469

't50,000

31,400

37,784,260 37,431,511

3,2t1,187 3,084,469

100,000 150,000

376,910 31,400

¡11,528,337 40,697,380 ¡11,528'337 40,697,380

11,{49,il1 40,624,197 11,{,,g,U 40,624,497

112,841 (35,876) (2;a4¡ (35,876)

¡11,4i16,700 40,588,621 41,4i¡6,700 40,588,621

846,873

328,990

I,973,1l5
36,847,858

1,731,7O1

27't,423

416,111

I,795,430

36,354,789

1,859,627

846,873

328,990

1,973,115

36,8¡17,858

1,731,701

27't,423

416,111

r,795,430

36,354,789

I,859,627

41,628,3t7 40,697,380 11,628,tt1 40,697,380

Wrile retail loans and advances principally have a contractual term of 30 years, the average life of a retail loan is
approximately 5 years (2011: approximately 5 years).

13. DERIVATIVES

Derivative contracts

Each derivative is classified for accounting purposes as 'hedging" or as 'other derivative". Derivatives classified as
hedging are derivative transactions entered into in order to manage the risks arising from non-traded assets and liabilities.
The other derivative is a cross curency swap that the Group entered i¡to during the year. The fair value of the cross
curency swap at 31 December 2O12was a liability of $2.5 million.

Derivatives transacted for hedging purposes

The Group enters into derivative transactions which are designated and qualiff as either fair value or cash llow hedges for
rpcognised assets or liabilities or forecast transactions.

Derivatives deslgnated and accounted for as hedging instruments

The Group's accounting policies for derivatives designated and accounted for as hedging instruments are explained in

Note 2, "significant Accounting Policies'where terms used in the following sections are explained.

Fair value hedges

The Group's fair value hedges consist of interest rate swaps. Fair value hedges are used to limit the Group's exposure to
changes in the fair value of its fixed-rate interest eaming assets and interest bearing liabilities that are due to interest rate

volatility.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, a loss on ineffect¡veness of $3.1m (201 1 -loss of $0.4m) was taken to the lncome
Statement. As at 31 December 2012,[he fair value of outstanding derivatives designated as fair value hedges was $1 17.9

million (201 1 : ç'122.7 million) of assets and $108.4 million (201 1 : $89.4 million) of liabilities.

ING Bank (Aushalia) Limited and controlled entities
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13. DERTVATTVES (CONTTNUED)

Cash flow hedges

The Group uses interest rate swaps to minimise the variability in cash flows of interest+aming assets and interest{earing
liabilities.

For the year ended 31 December 2O12,lhere has been no material gain or loss associated with ineffective portions of cash
lïow hedges. Gains and losses on derivative contraots designated ae cash flow hedges are initially recorded in
comprehensive income in the cash flow hedge reserve but are reclassified to cunent period eamings vvhen the hedged
cash flows occur.

As at 31 December 2012, the net fair value of outstanding derivatives designated as cash flow hedges was $58.4 million
net liabilities (2011: $96.0 million net liabilities).

Con¡olldated 2012 2011

amounts in lhousands of dollarc Falrvalue Falrv¡lue Fair value Fair value
assot llabllltv Face value asset liabilityFacc value

Darivaüve assets and liabililles

Hedglng dedvatives

Otter dedvalive

Tot¡l dorlvatlvo
areetr{llabllltles}

Deñvatives designated as fair
value hedges

' lnter€st rate sweps

Tohl l¡lr v¡luo hcdgcc

Derivaüves designatêd as cash
f,ow hedges

lnterest rale swaps

Totel c¡¡h f,ow hcdger

Olher derlvative

Cross auFency swap

Total othor dodvrtlve

Total ncognlred dsrlvatlvo
ascetlr(ll¡bllltle¡)

22.830,186 r4eß9 l194,2gtl 34,402.635 130,207 (192,982)

22,560,186

270,000

1¿32,8i¡9 1191,7171 34,402,635

(2,520)

13O,2O7_ (192,982)

5,458,810 117,918 (108,¿t26) 7,195,210 122,650 (8e,435)

5,¡f66,610 lt7,9l8 (108,425)

17,103,678 21,921 l8it,3zl) 27,207,425

7,195,210 122,650 (89,435)

7,557 (103,547)

17,103,576

tl0,o0o

4,921 l8ll,3zt) 27,207,425

la52o)

7,557 (103,547)

270,000 (2,5201

22,830,186 l12,8¡tg (t94,267) 34,402,635 't30,207 (1 92,982)
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13.

Bank

DER¡VATIVES (CONTINUED)

2011

amounts in thousands of dollars
Facs value

Falr value
assot

Falr value Fair value Fair value
llabilltv Face value asset liability

Dedvaüve assets and liabilities

Hedglng derivatircs

Tot¡l dorlv¡tlvc alsott,
(llebllltler)

Dedvaüves deslgnated as fair
value hedges

lntorest rate swaps

Tot¡l l¡lr valuc hedgcr

Deriìraüv€g designated as cash
frow hedges

Inter€st rate swaps

Tol¡l c¡¡h fow hcdger

Total recognlsod derlvatlve
a¡¡et¡(llabllltlo¡)

22,560,186 .l¡12,8¡¡9 ll9l,7a7) u,402,635 130,207 (192,982)

22,830,186 l¡12,E¡19 (191,7¿t7) 34,402,635 130,207 (192,982)

5,456,810 fi7,9t8 (108,¡125) 7,195,210 122,650 (8e,435)

'5f166,610 ll7,9lE (108,425) 7,195,210 122,650 (8s,435)

17,103,576 a,921 (83,32':t) 27,207,425 7,557 (ræ,547)

17,103,676 21,921 (83,3221 27,207,425 7,557 (103,547)

22,560,186 l¡12,8í19 (191,74?) 34,402,635 13O,2O7 (r92,982)
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13. DERTVATTVES (CONTTNUED)

Cash llow hedges Gonsolldated Bank

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 201',! 2012 201'l

Fair value of hedge instuments
Amount recognised ln comprehensive income dudng
the pedod (net oftar)

Amount removed from compehensiræ income and
induded in net profit dudng the period

158,{H} (95,990) (58,40r) (95,990)

2A,252 (27,306) 26,262 (27,306)

- 916 - 916

The Group enters derivative contracts to hedge pools of underlying assets or liabilities in macro cash flow hedge
relationships. At 31 December 2012 the cash flow hedge portfolios contained derivatives of varying maturities up to 5
years with the largest concentrat¡on in the range of 1 to 5 years. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Bank
recognised a $26.3 million gain (2O11: $28.2 million loss) in equity as effective fair value changes on derivatives under
cash flow hedge accounting. The balance of the cash flow hedge reserve in equity at 31 December 2012 was negative
$40.7 million (2011: negative $66.9 million) afrer defened tax. The ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges of positive $0.1
million (201 1: negative $0.1 million) was recognised in the Income Statement.

Falr value hedgoa Con¡olldated Bank

amounts in thousands of dolla¡s 2012 20',t1 2012 201',l

Fair value of hedge ¡nsüuments

Cunent year (losses)/gains on hedging instruments

Fair value of hedged items

Cunent year gains(losses) on hedged item

Hedge ¡nefiediveness

14. RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

9'¡193

117,7221

33,2't 5

58,959

9,493

117,7221

32,215

58,959

ll,486,lll0) (2,237,829,

l¡1,616 (59,326)

(1,466,0,10) (2,237,8291

14,8t6 (59,326)

(3,i06i (3ö7) (3,i06¡ (367)

Consolldated

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 2011 2012 2011

Accn¡ed ¡nterost receivable

Sundry debtors and other assets

Tot¡l lpcelvablot end othot assots

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and controlled entities
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218,929

12,210

368,950

't1,272

218,929 368,950

14210 1',t,272

231,139 380,222 231.139 380,222
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PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Con¡olldated

Propefty, plant and equ¡pment at co3t

Accumulaied dep_redation and amortisatlon

fot¡l property, pl.nt and aqulpment

Malnfr¡me computelr & computor egu¡pmont

Openlng balence.,

Add¡tions

Depredation

Closlng balance

Penon¡l computett
Opening balance

Additions

Depreciation

Closing balance

Computaraofruran

Openlng balance

Additons

Depteciatlon

Closing balance

Lea¡ehold lmprovements

Opening balance

Additions

Depreciation

Closing balance

ilotor vehlcle¡
Opening balance

Depreciation

Closing balance

r55,4E0

(t31,763)

142,361

(117,3231

155,¿180 142,361

(131,763) (1't7,323)

2s;t17 23,717

6,812

2,349

(4,8091

7,348

5,035

(5,571)

6,812

2,99
(4,809)

7,U8
5,035

(5,571)

1,362 6,812 1,352 6,812

1,748

303

(4so)

1,742

522

(516)

1,718

303

(4e0)

1,742

522

(516)

1,561 't,748 1,561 1,748

8,876
g,a¿o

(7'4s4)

13,588

4,04
(8,756) (7,4941

13,588

4,04
(8,756)

8,97ô

9,2i2O

10,ô02 lo,8o2

7,5(!8

1,301

lt,688l

8,505

920

(r ,e1s)

7,506

1,304

(1,6881

8,505

920

(r,919)

7,122 7,506 7,122 7,506

96

(r6)
112

(1 6)

112

(r6)
96

(r6)

Depreciation costs include the impact of any impairment recognised over the course of the year.
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16. DEPOSITS

Con¡olldated BanI

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 2011 2012 2011

Totrl deporltr on dcm¡nd and .hott t rm deposltr

tatu¡lty analyrlr of doporltr
At-call

Not longer than 3 months

Longer lhan 3 monhs and not longer than I year

Longer than I year and not longer than 5 yearc

Tot¡l undl¡count d d.po.lt¡ on dem¡nd and 3hoñ tctm
deposltr

28¡61,900 26,093,814 28.a61,900 26,093,814

16,258,358 17,106,352

1,715,087 4,512,723

7,286,170 4,540,579

676,3¡37 378,279

16,2õE,358 17,106,352

1,776.087 4,542,723

7,285,370 4,540,579

878,347 378,279

28,996,112 26,567,933 28,995,142 26,567,933

The variance between the total deposits on demand and short term deposits and the total of the maturity analysis of total
deposits payable on demand and short term deposits is the difference between the undiscounted cash floua to maturity
and the carrying value, wttich is amortised using the effective interest rate method.

,17. DEPOSITS PAYABLE TO OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Gonsolldated Banl¡

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 20'11 2012 2011

Cerdfcato! of deporlb

Deporltr
Related bodies corporate

Other f nancial institutions

Total dcporltl p.y¡blc to othor flnanclal ln¡tltutlon¡

ilaturiry en.lyslr ol deporitr p.yeblc

At-call

Not longerlhan 3 months

Longer than 3 months and not longer than 1 year

Longerthan I year and not longerthan 5 years

Tot¡l undlscounted dcposltr pty.ble to other flnancl¡l
lnltltutlon.

1,g2l,|flg

3,971,867

I,102,364

1,465,610

2,339,198

656,481

1,921,678 1,465,610

3,749,802 2,339,198

I,107,090 656,481

a071,231 2,995,679 4,856,692 2,995,679

6,995,909 4,46't,289 6,?:lg,tlo 4,461,289

¡fit9,006

3,059,712

2.134..211

1,5,:¡¡1,270

437,456

3,094,174

788,3M

186,977

221,16;t 437,456

3,059,712 3,094,174

2,1{,211 788,384

1,63'.,no 186,977

7,1t1,2O2 4,506,991 6,969,6G¡ 4,506,991

The variance between the total deposits payable and the total of the maturity analysis of deposits payable is the difrerence
between the undiscounted cash flows to maturity and the carrying value, which is amortised using the effeclive interest
rate method.
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18. CREDITORS AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Con¡olldated Bank

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 2011 2012

Accrucd htdrert payable

Related bodies corporetg

Olher persons or corporat¡ons

Totrl accrucd lnt Þst p.y¡blo

O{ùer llabllltlec

Accrued exp€nses

Prepaid interest

Commilmentfees

lncome tax payable

Olher

Totrl other ll¡blllllc¡
Totrl crrdltol! and other llabllltlec

19. DEBT ISSUES

23,236

312,568

14,994

308,937

22,672

310,362

14,994

308,937

335,80¡l 323,S31 333,034 323,931

28,171

2,496

991

lE,237

7,¡ll9

3l,400

2,970

4,212

52,850

7,922

28,!11

2,198

991

18,237

î,119

31,400

2,970

4,212

52,850

7,922

57,514 99,354 61,s11 99,354

393,318 123,285 390,548 423,285

Gonsolldated Bank

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 2011 2012 2011

Short to'm - not longor th.n I yoer to mdoñty
Floating rate notes

Goçorate bonds

Mortgage bad<ed secr¡ñlies

Total ¡hort tcrm debt !¡¡ue¡

Long term

Corporete bond3

Floating rate notes

Mortgage backed secr¡rites

Redeemable preference shares - related bodies corporate

Totrl long torm dcbt Icsuos

lot¡l debl l¡¡ue¡

trturlty ana¡yrl¡ ol dobt h!uo.
Not longer than 3 months

Longer than 3 months and not longer than 1 year

Longer than I year and not longer than 5 years

Loligerlhan 5 years

Total undl¡counted dcbt l¡¡uc¡

1,682,900

1,2*2!t6
r98,980

400,000

1,360,153

1,582,900 400,000

1,24296 1,360,153

196,980

3,034,175 1,760,153 3,03+176 1,760,153

2,211,519

2,000,000

z,'ltl,66E-

3,462,888

5,151,616

1,93,1,978

1,000,000

2,211,819 3,4ô2,888

2,600,000 5,151,616

2,7n,668 1,934,978

- 1,000,000

7,6i19,177 11,il9,482 7,6tg,1Tt 11,#5,482

10,573,352 13,309,635 10,5:73,352 13,309,635

1,099,077

2,618,599

8,284.,726

n9,786

'tu,674
2,662,048

10,4ø,090

1,407,749

1,089,077 1u$74
2,610,599 2,662,048

8,284.,726 10,40,f,090

n9,788 1,407,749

12,270,188 r4,658,561 12,t1O,188 14,658,561

The variance betr¡ræen the total debt issues and the total of the maturity analysis of debt issues is the diffeience between
the undiscpunted cash flows to maturity and the carrying value, which is amortised using the effective interest rate method.
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20. PROVISIONS

Con¡olldatod Benk

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 2011 2012 2011

Annual leave

. ì-ong sewice leav_e

lotrl provblon.

Provisions expected to be paid in next 12 months

21, CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

11,608 10,752 11,608 10,7s2

5,7¡t¡¡ 6,377 6,713 6,377

Gonsolldated

5129

6,079

5,¿129

6,079

5,661

5,131

5,661

5,131

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 2012 201'l

l¡¡ucd and pald equlty

Ordlnary voting shares

Ordlnary non-voüng shares

Totrl contrlbuted cqulty

1,284,000 I,284,000

50,000 50,000

1,284,000 l,284,ooo

50,000 50,000

1,3i1r,000 1,334,000 1,334,000 1,334,000

Con¡olidatod 2012 2011

lssucd capltrl

Balance at beg¡nn¡ng offinandal year

lssue of shares

Bal¡ncc at end ol llnanclal year

# ol Shanc ¡ 000 # of Shares $ 000

1,33a,000,004 1,334,000 1,334,000,004 1,334,000

1,33a,000,004 1,33¡1,000 1,334,000,004 1,334,000

Bank 2012 20't1

læucd capltal

Balance et beginning offnancial year

lssue of shares

Bal¡nce at end offlnanclal year
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22. RESERVES

Con¡olldatod Bank

emounts ¡n thousends of dollars 2012 2011 2012 2011

Av¡ll¡ble lor c¡lc rrccwo

.Opening balance

R€valuation movement for the year, net of tax

Transfer ofnet prollt on sale to n€t non-¡nter€st
lncome

Tax on amount fansfened to lncome Statement

Totel ¡vallablc lor lelo ttse¡vc

C¡¡h llow hedge ruerve

Openlng balance

Revaluation movement for lhe year, net of tax

Tmnsfer to interest incomer

Tax on amount transfened to lncome Statoment

Total ceth fow hedgc rocerve

Gene¡al ¡ltonre

Sha¡e-based payments

Opening balance

Movement for the year, net oftax

Tot¡l ¡ham-b¡red pa¡mcnts rorotvo

General ¡eserve for øedit loss€s

Opening balance

Transfer from retained eamings

Total gencnl te¡ot-e for c¡tdlt losse¡

Tot¡l genonl !Ðaerut

Total rtsetvos

23. RETAINED PROFITS

130,9¡14 82,426 130,944 82,426

138,067 88,266 138,057 88,266

109,75¡1 17,452 109,75¡l 17.452

Concolidated Bank

13,8691

l5,3al

1,312

(3e4)

17,400

(23,167)

3,140

(s42)

13,869)

15,341

1,312

(3sr¡

17,400

(23,467',)

3,140

(e42)

12,390 (3,869) 12,390 (3,86e)

Gains and losses arising from subsequent changes in fair value are recognised directly in the available for sale reserye

in equity until the asset is derecognised or impaired, at which time the cumulat¡ve gain or loss will be recognised in the
lncome Statement. Fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on cunent bid prices (nil in 2012).

(66,945)

26,252

(38,723)

(27,306)

(1,30e)

393

(66,9,f6)

26,2ó2

(38,7231

(27,306)

(1,30e)

393

(t0,8931 (66,e45) (40,693) (66,945)

1 The transfer to interest income in the prior year consisted of forward-starting swaps terminated early during 2011.

For a derivative designated as hedging a æsh flow exposure arising from a recognised asset or liability, the gain or loss

on the derivative associated with the effective portion of the hedge is initially recognised in equity in the cash flow hedge
reserve and reclassified into the lncome Statement when the hedge item is brought to account. The gain or loss relat¡ng

to the ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised immediately in the lncome Statement.

6,8a0 4,423

1,273 1,417

6,840 4,423

1,zr13 '1,4'17

7,113

82,128

¡18,518

5,840

8't,303

1,123

?,113

82,126

18,518

5,840

8l,303

1,'t23

âmounts in thousands of dollars 2012 2011 20't'l

Retllned proftr

Opening balance

Profit for the year

. Transf€rto general reserve

Gloclng bal¡ncc
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1,790,5E0 1,562,909 1,790,580 1.562.909

1,582,900

27!t,189

(,18,518)

1,259,762

304,270

(1,123)

1,592,909

2-16,189

la8,618)

1,259,762

30,1.,270

(r,1 23)



Notes to the Financial Statements

24" FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities are determined using quoted market prices, where available. Market prices
are obtained from independent market vendors, brokers, or market makers. ln general, positions are valued taking the bid
price for a long position and the ofrer price for a short position. ln certain markets that have become significantly less liquid
or illiquid, the range of prices for the same security tom different price sources can be significant. Selecting the most
appropriate price within this range requires judgement. The cioice of different prices could produce materially different
estimates of fair value.

For certain financial assets and liabilities, quoted market prices are not available. For these financial asåets and liabilities
fair value is determined using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques range from discounting of cash flows to
valuation models, where relevant pricìng factors including the market price of underlying reference instruments, market
parameters (volatilities, conelations, credit ratings) and customer behaviour. All valuation techniques used are subject to
intemal review and approval. Most data used in these valuation techniques is validated on a daily basis.

Valuation techniques are subjective ¡n nature and significant judgement is involved in establishing fair values for certain
financial assets and liabilities. Valuation techniques involve various assumptions regarding pricing factors. The use of
different valuation techniques and assumptions could produce materially different estimates of fair value.

Price testing is performed to assess wñether the prooess of valuation has led to an appropriate fair value of the position
and to an appropriate reflection of these valuations in the Income Statement. Price testing is performed to minimise the
potential risks from economic losses due to materially inconect or misused models.

Set out below is a comparison by category of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Bank's financial instruments. The
methodology and assumptions used in determining fair values are as below:

Gash and cash equivalents

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents is an approximation of fair value as they are short term in nature or are
receivable on demand.

Accrued intercst æceivable

The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable is an approximation of fair value as they are short term in nature.

Available for sale investments

The fair value of available for sale investments is initially recognised at fair value including transaction costs. Fair values of
quoted investments in active markets are based on cunent bid prices.

Loans and advances

The carrying value of loans and advances is net of collective and specific provisions for impairment. For variable loans the
carrying amount is an approximation of fair value. For fixed rate loans the fair value is calculated by utilising discounted
cash llow models, based on the contractual terms of the loans.

Dedvative assets

The fair value of swaps is calculated by utilising discounted cash flow models, based on the estimated future cash flows.

Deposits

For at-call deposits, the carrying amount is an approximation of fair value as they are short term in nature or are payable
on demand. For term deposits, the fair value is calculated by utilising discounted cash flow models, based on the maturity
of the deposits.

Deposits payable to other flnancial lnstitutlons

The fair value of payables due to other flnancial institutions is calculated by utilising discounted cash flow models, based
on the estimated future cash flows.

Debt lssues

The fair value of debt issues is calculated by utilising discounted cash flow models, based on the estimated future cash
flows.

lNc Benk (Australia) Limited and controlled entities
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24. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Dorlvative liabllltles

The fair value of swaps is calculated by utilising discounted cash flow models, based on the estimated future cash flows.

Gredito¡r and other liabilitles

The carrying amount of creditors and other liabilities is an approximation of fair value.

Summary

The following table provides comparison of carrying and fair values for each item discussed above, where applicable:

Congolldated

Carrylng v.luc Falr value Carrying value Fair value
amounts in thoussnds ofdollars 2012 2012 2011 2011

Recognlred Fln¡ncl¡l A¡¡et¡

Cash and cash equivalents

Available for sale frnancial assets

Loans and advances

Derivative assets

Accn¡ed interest receivable

Recognlred Flnanclal Llabllltles

Deposits

Deposits payable to other financial ¡nstitutions

Debt ¡ssues

Derivaliw liabilities

Accrued interest payable

Bank

626,808

7,446,800

¡31,¡1116,700

l¡12,839

218,929

28'¿16t,900

6,995,809

10,673,382

1f'4.,281

335,804

õ25,808

7,¡L5'800

41,65¡¡,141¡

1a2,8¡¡9

218,929

28,il2,3æ

7,100,030

10,718,266

1f'4,267

3i15'80¡f

418,160

5,779,852

40,588,621

130,207

368,950

26,093,814

4,46',t,289

13,309,635

192,982

323.931

,118,'160

5,779,852

40,766,306

130,207

368,950

26,142,185

4,467,464

13,582,657

192,982

323,931

Garrylng value
amounts in thousands of dollars 20'12

Fair valuo Carrying value
2012 2011

Fair value
201'l

Recognlæd F|nanc¡al Ass.t

Cash and cash equ¡valents

Available for sale financial assets

Loans and advences

Derivative assets

Accn¡ed interest receivable

Recognlred Flnrnclal Llabllltle¡

Deposits

Deposits payable to olher financ¡al instlh¡llons

Debt ¡ssues

Dedvative llabllities

Accn¡ed interest payable

ING Bank (Austrelia) Limited and controlled ent¡ties
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302,979

7,445,800

41,¡3:¡6'700

142.839

218,929

28,a61,900

g,7:lg,no

10,573,352

191,717

333,034

302,979

7,tl¡5,39¡

41,65i¡,141¡

l¡12,8:19

21E,929

28,5¡12,358

8,881,641

10,716,25õ

191,7a7

3i13,034

418,160

5,779,852

40,588,621

130,207

368,950

26,093,814

4,46't,289

13,309,635

192,982

323,931

418,160

5,779,852

40,766,306

130,207

368,950

26,142,185

4,467,4æ

13,582,657

192,982

323,931
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24. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Methods applied ln determlning fair values of financlal assets and llabilitles

Level I - Reference to publlshed prlce quotations In active markets

This category includes financial instruments wñose fair value is determined directly by reference to published quotes in

an active market. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active maket if quoted prices are readily available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occrning market transaclions on an arm's length basls.

Level 2 - Valuatlon technlque supported by maÉ<et lnputs

This category includes financial instruments whose fair value is determined using a valuation technique (model), where
inputs in the model are taken from an active market or are market observable. lf certain inputs in the model are not
market observable, but all significant inputs are, the instrument is still classified in this category, provided that the impact
of those elements on the overall valuation is insignificant.

lnduded in this category are items whose value is derived from quoted prices of similar instruments, but for which the
prices are (more than insignifcantly) modified based on other market observable extemal data.

Level 3 - Valuatlon technique not supported by market lnputs

This category indudes financial assets and liabilities whose fair value is determined using a valuation technique (model)

for which more than an insignificant level of the input in terms of the overall valuation are not market observable. This
category also includes financial assets and liabilities whose fair value is determined by reference to indicative quotes but
for which the market is considered inactive.

Garrying and falr value comparlson

The following table presents the fair values of the Group's financial assets and liabilities that are canied at fair value.
Certain balance sheet items are not included in the table, as they do not meet the definition of a financial asset or liability.
The aggregation of the fair values presented below does not represent and should not be construed as representing the
underlying value of the Group.

Gon¡olldatod - 3't Deeamber 2012

âmounls in thousands of dollars Level I Level 2 Level 3

Flnanclal lnltrumentr - .!3ott
Derivalive assels

lnterest rate stìraps

Total der¡vetive ass€ts

Available for sale fnancial assets

Debt secuñties lssued by Banks

Debt secr.¡riües issued by Govemments

Mortgage bad<ed secr¡dües

Total available for sale financial assets

Total fnanclal Inltrumont! - a$.tr

Fln¡nclal ln¡trumontr - llabllltle¡

Derivaüve liabilities

lriter$t rato swaps

Cross Cunency Swaps

Totel derivative liabilltes

Totel llnanclal ln¡trument¡ - llabllltlo¡

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and controlled entiÙes
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l¡12,839

114839

4,58a551

2,675,358-

187,89t

l{2,E39

,1,582,5õl

2,675,358

l8ì7,89t

7,257,909 187,891 7,145,6¡g

7,ßO,lß 187,891 7,588,639

(191,7471

12,5201

llg1,7a7l
(2,520)

|19,.,2671 ll9¡1,267)

1194,267)1194.,2871

u
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Bank-31 December2012

amounts in thousands ofdollars Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total

Flnanclal lnstrumonts - assotr

Defivaüve assets

lnterest rate sweps

Total derivatirc assets

Available for sale financial assels

Debt seqrrities issued by Banks

Debt securities issued by Govemments

Mortgage bad<ed secudties

Total available for sale fnancial assets

Total flnanclal ¡nstruments - assot3

Flnanclal InstrurÍonts - liabilltles

Derivative liabilities

lnterest rate swaps

Total derivative liabilities

Total flnancla! lnstrumonts - llabilitles

Consolidated - 3l December 201 I

l¡[2,839 1¡12,839

112,839

1,592,551

2,675,358

t87,891

1¿12,839

¡1,582,551

2,675,358

187,891

7,257,909 187,891 7,4,35,800

7,100,718 187,89t 7,588,639

11s1,7171 1191,7171

1191,7171 1191,7171

(191,7,171 1191,7171

emounts in thousands of dollars Level I L€vo¡ 2

Flnanclal Instrum€nts - assets

Derivative assets

lnterest rate swaps

Total derivat¡ve assets

Available for sale financial assets

Debt sectrrities issued by Banks

Debt securities issued by Govemments

Mortgage backed securities

Other securities

Total available for sale financial assets

Total flnanclal Instruments - assets

Flnanclal instruments - llabllltles

Derivative liabilities

lnterest rale swaps

Total derivat¡ve liabilities

Total llnanclal Instn¡ments - llabllltles

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and controlled entities
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130,207 130,207

130,207

3,110,315

2,405,086

262,563

130,207

3,1 10,315

2,405,086

262,563

1,8881 888

1 888 5,515,401 262,563 5,779,852

1,888 5,6,15,608 262,563 5,910,059

- (192,982)

- - - -t1.9-2:99?l
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24. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bank-31 Doccmber20ll

amounts in thousands of dollars Level I Level 2 Total

Fln¡nclal lnltrument¡ - a3s.t¡

Derivative assets

lnterÞst rate swaps

Total derfuatiw assets

Available for sale fnandal assets

. Debt secr¡dües issued by Banks

Debt secr¡¡ities issued by Govemments

Mortgago backed securiües

Other secr¡rities

Total availablo for sale fnancial assets

Totrl fn¡ncl¡l lnstrument! - erlet!

Flnanclal ln¡trument¡ - llabllltle¡

Derivaüve liabiliües

lnterest rate swaps

Total deñvatiw liabilities

Total f,nanclal ln¡trumont¡ - llabllltle¡

130,207 130,207

130,207

3,110,315

2,405,086

2ô2,563

r30,207

3,1 1ò,315

2,405,086

262,563

1,8881,888

1,888 5,515,401 262,5ô3 5,779,852

I,888 5,6,15,608 262,563 5,910,059

(r92,982) (192,982)

(re2,e82) (192,982)

(192,982) (192,e82)

The estimated fair values corespond with the amounts at which the financial instruments at our best estimate could have
been traded at the balance sheet date between knowledgeable, willing parties in amsJength transactions. Where
available, the fair value of financial assets and liabilities is based on quoted market prices.

The carrying value of mortgage backed securities disclosed as level 3 are reconciled as follows:

Year ended 3l Decembot 2012

amounts in thousands of dollars

Loss recognised
in lncome

Al1 Jan2012 Statement

Loss
recognised in

equity Purcfiases Sales

Transfers from
level I and At 3l Dec

Settlements level 2 2012

262,563

Year ended 3l December 20ll

(6121 (6rrl 12,7271 fto,892) 187,891

amounts in thousands of dollars

Loss recognised Loss
in lncome recognised in

At I Jan 2011 Statement equ¡ty Purchases Sales

Transfers from
level I and At 3l Dec

Settlements level 2 2011

369,052 (585) (4,508)

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and controlled entities
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(e,255) (92,14't) 262,563
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25. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has three operating segments being Moftgages, Savtngs (including savings from Superannuation) and
Commercial Loans. The segments have been identified based on intemal reports that are reviewed and used by the
Executive Committee in assessing performance and in determining the alloc¿tion of resources. Under the current
organisational structure, Mortgages and Savrngs are both managed with the Customer Propositions and Gustomer
Delivery businesses.

The head of each segment is represented by a member of the Executive Committee. The Board sets the performance

targets, approves and monitors the budgets prepared by the divisions. The divisions formulate strategic, commercial and
financial policy in conformity with the overall strategy and performance targets set by the Board.

Operating income materially comprises of a combination of transactions directly identifiable to each of the segments and
intemal transfer pricing. Transfer pricing is set on an arm's length basis for inter-segment transac{ions. Allocation of
expenses is a combination of directly identifiable allocation and segment weighting.

Consolldated

Yearendad 3l December 2012

Mortgages Savings Commercial

âmôunls in lhousands ofdollars Loans

Operating income

Loan loss provisionlng

Allocated expenses

Net logment e.mlnga

Roport blo s.gmcnl .!r.t ¡nd ll¡bllltle¡
Loans and advances

Deposiß

Year ended 3l December 201 I

l9¡f,979 16l,019 39,310 396,338

2A\6tE
22181

(88,708)

zn,11o

12631

(fl8,138)

6t 058

(t8,698)

(1,1221

603,986

3,319

(211,966)

g8,115.¡1/,4 loo,000

28,a81,900

3,191,296 41,136,700

28¡6t,900

Mortgages Savings Commercial

Loans

Tot¡l

ãmounts in lhousands of dollars

Operating income

Loan loss provisioning

Allocated expenses

Net segment eamings

Reportable segment assets and l¡ab¡lit¡es

Loans and advences

Deposits

Consolidatod

373,717

(12,1 38)

(94,024)

221,403

(316)

(r06,894)

66,66r

(11,.{16)

(s,852)

66r,781

(23,870)

(210,770)

267,555 1 14,193 427,141

37,414,242 1 50,000

26,093,814

3,024,379 40,588,621

26,093,814

amounts ¡n thousands of dollars 2011

Net segment eamings

lncome tax expense

Proft for lhe year

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and controlled entities
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395,338

(119,149)

427,141

(122,8711

26,189



Other Disclosures

26, RISK MANAGEMENT

lntroduction

The objective of the Group's Risk Management tunction is to build a sustainable competitive advantage by fully
integrating risk management into daily business activities and strategic planning.

The following principles support th¡s objective, and relate equally to the Group and the Bank as they have identical risk
profiles:

. Products and portfolios are structured, priced, approved and managed appropriately. lntemal and extemal rules and
guidelines are complied with.

. The Group's risk profile is transparent and consistent with delegated authorities.

¡ Delegated authorilies are consistent with the overall Group's strategy and risk appetite.

. Transparent communication to internal and extemal stakeholders on rísk management and value creation.

Taking risk is inherent in the Group's business activities. To ensure prudent risk-taking across the organisation, the
Group operates through a comprehensive risk govemance framewok. The Group believes this ensures the proper

identification, measurement and control of risks in all levels of the organisation so that financial strength is safeguarded.

Rlsk govemance

The Group's risk govemance framework provides clear charters and mandates for the management of risk. Risk
management in the Group is effected through a govemanoe structure involving a series of local, Board and Head Office
committees.

The govemance structure is independent of the day to day management of the Group's business activities. Separation
and segregation ftom the management structure is essential to the effective govemance of the Group's market and
balance sheet management activities. The govemance structure is described below.

Board risk oversight

Ultimate control over the strategy and policy settings of the Group rests with the Board. As a subsidiary of ING Groep
NV, the Group is also subject to the govemance and control of the parent cÐmpany. The Board utilises three committees
to discharge its responsibilities.

Risk Committee - the Risk Gommittee is responsible for overseeing the Group's assessment and management of credit
risk, market risk and operational risk incJuding insurance, legal and compliance matters. The Risk Committee has been
established to ensure a holistic approach to risk management within the Group. lt will ensure that the Group maintains
its established policy of effective and informed risk management, reporting to the Board as necessary, and being
available to meet with regulators (such as ASIC and APRA) on behalf of the Group, when requested.

Audit Committee - the Audit Committee assists the Board with regard to its responsibility for overseeing that an effective
intemal control framework exists within the Group. This includes intemal controls to deal with both the effectiveness and

efficiency of significant business processes, wñich involve safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper accounting
records as well as non-financial considerations such as the benchmarking of operational key performance indicators.
The Committee assists the Board in the establishment and maintenance of a framework of intemal control and ethical
standards for the management of the Group.

Remuneration and Nomination Committee - the Remuneration and Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
and making recommendations to the Board in respect of recruitrnent, retention, all equity-based remuneration,
termination and compensation anangements for Non-Executive Directors, CEO and all Senior Executives. lt also
ensures compliance with the requirements of regulatory and govemance bodies.

RIsk management organlsatlon

To ensure that the risk framework is effective and clear on responsibilities, the Group adopts a 'three lines of defence'
concept. This concept provides a clear allocation of responsibilities for the ownership and management of risk, to avoid
overlaps and/or gaps in risk govemance.

Business line management has primary responsibility for the day to day management of risk and belongs to the first line
of defence.

ING Bank (Austral¡a) Limited and controlled entities
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26. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUEDI

The Risk Management func{ion belongs to the second line of defence and is responsible for formulating high-level
policies, limits and risk appetite. The Risk Management tunction provides oversight, challenge and support to optimise

the risk and reward tradeoff.

The lnternal Audit function provides independent and objective assurance on the effectivehess of the overall system of
intemal control, including financial, operational, compliance and risk management and forms the third line of defence'

Rlsk Management functlon

The Risk Management function within the Group, as the second line of defence, is responsible for the identification,

measurement, monitoring and control of the following risk categories:

. Credit risk

. Market risk

. Liquidity risk

r Non-Financial Risk (Operational, Compliance and Legal risk)

The management chart below illustrates the functional reporting lines within the Group's risk organisation.

ING Bank Hcad
Offce Functional

Departmcnts

Hierarchical Repoding Line

Functional Rcporting Line
Local risk commlttees

The local risl( committees described below act within the overall risk policy and delegated authorities granted by the

Board. The committees have a goveming role and ensure a close link between the business lines and the Risk

Management function through joint representation on each committee:

. Asset and Liability Management Committee ('ALCO') 'ALCO defines the policy regarding tunding, liquidity, interest

rate m¡smatch and solvency of the Group. ALCO provides governanc,e to ensure that the Group's risk profile

complies with the Group's overall risk appetite and risk policy framework and at a minimum, meets on a monthly

basis;

¡ Local Credit Committee ("LCC') - Advises on transactions involving the taking of credit risk and on specific and

collective loan loss provisioning for the Group. The LCC is responsible for the oversight and monitoring of the credit

infrastruclure (incorporating systems, models, people and policies) and credit portfolios (quali$ and anears) and at a

minimum, meets on a monthly basis; and

¡ Non-Financial Risk Committee ("NFRC') - The overall responsibility of the NFRC is to oversee and monitor the Non-

Financial Risk ('NFR') profile of the bank (operational, compliance and legal risks) and ensure they are managed in

accordance with the Risk Management Framework. The NFRC acts as an escalation point for issues which impact

the banks NFR profile and ensures that the appropriate management action is taken. The NFRC meets at a

minimum, on a monthly basis.

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and controlled enlities
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26. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Risk pollcies

The various risk management functions have each designed and issued a framework of risk management policies and
procedures providing local guidance on how to manage risk. Policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and
updated via the relevant risk committees with annual Board approval.

Rl¡k mea¡urcment

The major risk categories associated with the volume and variety of financial instruments that the Group uses are credit,
market, liquidity, operational (including faud, information and security risks) and compliance risk. ln the following
sections beloq the Group's risk management aclivities are described with respect to these risk categories. Each risk
category describes the types of risk managed and the applicable risk measurement method that the Group practices,
induding quantification of the risks.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of loss from default by debtors or counterparties. Credit risk arises in the Group's lending, pre-
settlement and investment aclivities. Credit risk management is supported by dedicated credit risk information systems
and intemal rating methodologies for debtors and counterparties.

The Group's øedit exposure mainly relates to traditional secured lending to individuals (retail banking) and businesses
(commercial property finance) followed by investment in short and long term wholesale loans and securities. Loans to
individuals are mainly mortgage loans secured by residential property. Loans to businesses are Priority Commercial
Mortgages, Commercial Property Finance ('CPF") or Real Estate Finance secured by residential and commercial
securities. ìMolesale loans and securities are mainly unsecured, with some secured lending in the form of covered
bonds. Securitised assets such as mortgage backed securities are secured by the pro-rata portion of the underlying pool

of assets held by the issuer of the securitised bond.

Risk dasses are defined based upon the quality of the exposures in terms of creditworthiness, varying from investment
grade to problem grade expressed in Standard and Poo/s rating agency ("SAP") equivalents.

Rlsk classe¡: Group portfollo as a percentage of total outstandlngs

S&P Eouivalent Ratino Risk Gradino 2012 . 2011

4.5
6.3

11.7

41.1

26.2

3.1

1.1

3.3

25.8

9.4
30.4
25.6

3.3

2.2

1

24
ï7
&10

AAA

AA
A
BBB

BB

B

CCC & Problem Grade

11-13
1+16
17-20

The distribution of asset exposures by risk grading include retail, commercial and wholesale investments. The Group
maintains a portfolio of wholesale assets rated by S&P of at least an A rating. The majority of these investments are
rated at least AA by S&P. The highest (internal) risk grade for retail loans is a risk grade of 3 with the majority rated
between risk grades I and 1'1. The highest (intemal) risk grade for commercial loans is a risk grade of 10 with the
majority rated between risk grades 11 and 12.

Settlement risk

Settlement risk arises when there is an exchange of value (funds and/or instruments) for the same or different value
dates and receipt is not verified or expected until the Group has paid or delivered its side of the trade. The risk is that the
Group delivers but does not receive delivery from the counterparty. Settlement risk can most commonly be contained
and reduced by entering into transactions with delivery-versus-payment settlement methods, as is common with most
clearing houses, or settlement netting agreements. Risk is further mitigated by operational procedures requiring trade
confrmations to counterparties with all transaction details and entering intemationally accepted documentation, such as

lntemational Swaps and Derivatives Association Master Agreements for derivative transactions.
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26. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Collate¡al pollcles

As with all financial institutions and banks in particular, the Group is in the business of taking credit risk. As suctt, the
creditworthiness of customers, trading partners and investments is continually evaluated for their ability to meet their
financial obligations to the Group. During the prooess of øeating new loans or inveÈtments as well as reviewing existing
loans and ¡nvestments, the Group determines the amount and type of collateral, if any, that a customer may be required
to pledge to the Group. Generally, the lower the perceived credit-woilhiness of a bonower or financial counterpañy, the
more collateral the customer or counterparty will have to provide.

Collateral held as security for treasury assets is determined by the nature of the instrument. Loans, debt securities,
treasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured with the exception of asset backed secr¡rities and similar
instruments, which are secured by pools of financial assets.

The Group has 'Credit Support Annex' agreements with all wholesale counterparties. These agreements allow the
Group to issue margin calls on the net mark-to<narket amount of derivative positions held between the Group and
individual wholesale counterparties. These agreements and subsequent collateral calls reduce the credit risk with these
counterparties as the mark-to-market value increases.

Problem loans

The Group continually measures its portfolio in terms of payment arears. The impairment levels on the commercial
loans are monitored on an individual basis. The impairment levels on the retail portfolios are monitored each month on a
portfolio basis to determine if there are any significant changes in the level of anears. Generally, an obligation is
considered 'pastdue' if a payment of interest or principal is more than one day late. From 7 days past due, letters will be
sent to the obligor reminding the obligor of its (past due) payment obligations. Once the account is in anears, the
obligation is usually transfened to the collections business unit. !n order to reduce the number of anears, the Group
encourages obligors to set up automatic debits from their accounts to ensure timely payments.

Generally, all loans with past due financial obligations of more than 90 days are automatically reclassified as impaired.
However, there can also be other reasons for declaring a loan impaired prior to it being 90 days past due. These
include, but are not limited to, the Group's assessment of a custome/s perceived inability to meet its financial obligation,
or the customer llling for bankruptcy or bankruptcy protection. ln some cases a material breach of financial covenants
will also trigger a redassification of a loan to the impaired category.

There is no significant concentration of a particular type of loan structure in the watch-list, past due or the impaired loan
portfolio.

The total residential mortgage portfolio 90 days past due as at the end o12O'12 is 40 basis points of outstanding, which
has decreased by 16 basis points since 201 1 (56 basis points). lt remains below external benchmark indices.
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26. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Loans by crrdlt quality

Consolldated and B¡nk 2012 2011

amounts in thousands of dollars $ 000 % S 000 oln

Nelther pasl due nor impaired

- of whldr: Resldentlal

- of whicft: Commercial

- of whictr: Flnanclal lnslitutlon

Past due but not impaired

lmpaired

39,a?,548

36;961,b96

2,988,%2

478,910

1,883,58E

117,201

9r.9

86.8

7.2

l.t
L1
1.0

93.3

85.9

6.9

0.5

5.6

1.1

37,970,557

u,974,713
2,814,444

181 ,400

2,265,632

457,191

11,628,93;1 r00.0 40,697,380 100.0

Ageing analysls (past due but not impai¡ed)

Less than I payment past du€

1 payment past due

2 payrnents past due

Pdvate individuals

Constudion & commercial real estate

1,331,823

zil,Ít2O
87,1¡15

79.1

15,7

6.2

1,646,984

437,532

r 85,116

72.6

19.3

8.1

1,683,58E r00.0 2,269,632 't 00.0

lmpaired loans by econom¡c sector

consotldated and Bank 2012 2o'l'l

amounts in thousands of dollars $ 000 % $ C00 %

164,9,15

252,2û
39.5

60.6

225,830

231,361

49.4

50.6

117,201 100.0 457,191 100.0

Rlsk concentradon: Group portfol¡o, by economic sector

Consolldated and Bank
in oercentaoes 2012 2011

Consh¡clion & eommerclal real estate

Flnancial instih.¡tlons

Private indMduals

Public adminisEation
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6.7

10.7

78.5

6.1

6.8

7.3

80.9

5.0

100.0 100.0
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26. R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Provlslon for lmpalrment
Con¡olldated

amounts in thousands of dollars

Speclllc provlrlonr

oþeniäg balaice

Net movement ln provision

Subtot¡!
Bad debts written ofr

Cloclng b.lancc - 3pccllc provlrlons

Colbctlve provlrlonr

Openlng balance

Net movement in provision

Cloolng belance - collocüve provltlonr

Total provlslon for lmpaltmcnt

zãsi¡s

tg:t11

62,788

18,270

92,597

lî3,804)

81,058

(8,175)

78J9i¡ 72,883

35,876

(23,032)

30,276

5,600

12,84 35,876

91,637 108,759

The Group recognises loan impairment wtere objective evidence is available that a loss event has occurred.

Specific provision is made for loans wtrich are individually assessed for impairment. The impairment is recognised

when there is reasonable doubt over the collectability of principal and interest in accordance with the loan

agreement.

The following table lists the extent to which the exposure for each asset class is not covered by collateral in the

event of default. This has been calculated as the total shortfall for those exposures that are not fully covered by

collateral, as a consequence of revaluation. Loan loss provisions for these exposures with shortfall are sufficient to
cover the shortfall for both Residential and Commercial Loans.

Exposurc not mitigated by collateral by asset class

Residential Loans

Commercial Loans

Maximum credit risk exposure

0.03
1.23

Gonsolldated

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012

Flnanclal a¡cotr

Cash and cash equivalents

Accn¡ed interest receivable

Available for sale fnancial assets

Loans and advances

Derival¡ve assets

Tot¡l
Ofr€alance She¡t

Undrawn loan commitments and bank accepled guarantees

Tot l m.x¡mum crcdlt rl¡I oxpo.unt

525,808

218,929

7,a,15,800

¡ll,¡li|6,700

142,839

418,160

368,950

5,779,852

40,588,621

130,207

ag:no,g78

5,{!4,3¡4

47,285,790

5,338,77r

5ô204,980 52,624,561

The maximum credit risk exposure for relevant items on the Balance Sheet is the Balance Sheet carrying value

for the relevant financial asset. For the off-Balance Sheet items the maximum credit risk exposure is the

maximum amount that could be required to be paid.
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26. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

IIIARKET RISK

The Group operates a banking book with the underlying assumption that banking book positions are intended to
be held for the long term (or until maturity) or for the purpose of hedging other banking book positions.

Market risk can be defined as the unexpected adverse movement in value due to market circumstances. For the
Group, this covers:

¡ lnterest rate risk; and

. Foreign exchange risk.

lntercst rate risk ln the banking book

Broadly delined, interest rate risk is the risk of, or potential for, a change in income or economic value of the

Group as a result of movements in market interest rates.

ln the normal course of its business, the Group minimises the mismatches between the duration of interest rate
sensitive assets and liabilities.

The term'interest rate risk'can be classified into three main categories:

¡ Tnding n'sk - the risk that arises from dealing in interest rate instruments with the express purpose of
generating income from their purchase and sale. Trading will typically involve multiple purchases and sales
õver a short time frame. Trading activities will normally be accounted for on a mark-to-market basis. Ihe
Group does not tnde and theretore thr.s nsk is not present within the Grcup;

. Model risk- the business aclivities of the Group give rise to assets and liabilities, both on and off-Balance
Sheet. Most of these assets and liabilities have a contractual re-pricing profile, however, for certain assets
and liabilities, the rearicing profile may need to be determined through modelling and analysis (for example,
non-rnaturity deposits, capital, non-performing loans and embedded iñterest rate options). The Group
actively manages the potential model risk through a regular review process and frequent analysis; and

o Mismalch n'sk- the contractual (or modelled) repricing profile of the Group's interest rate sensitive assets
and liabilities gives rise to a net mismatch. One of the objectives of ALCO is to monitor, manage and
minimise the net mismatch position of the Group. \Mlen the repricing profiles of all assets and liabilities are
perfectly matched, the Group has no net exposure to movements in market interest rates. A perfect match of
all interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities is nearly impossible. Therefore a residual mismatch position is

managed and capital is allocated for the mismatched position.

Managlng and monitorlng intercst rate risk

The type and level of mismatch interest rate risk of the Group is managed and monitored from two perspectives,

being an economic value perspective and an eamings perspective. The most important of these measures are

Economic Value Sensitivity f EVS") and Eamings at Risk ('EaR').

. EVS is a measure of the increase or decrease in the net ec,onomic value of the Group resulting from a
change in market interest rates. The process of calculating EVS involves adjusting the cunent value of all

assets and liabilities to the values that would apply in assumed different interest rate environments.

. EaR estimates the amount of change in future eamings of the Group that may result from a change in market
interest rates. An objective of this policy is to ensure that the amount of potential diminution of future
eamings resulting from changes in market rates is within the risk appetite determined by the Board.

The EaR perspective considers how changes in interest rates will afrect the Group's reported eamings through

the potential loss of eamings due to the cunent and forecast mismatch interest rate positions.
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26. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

lntercst rate risk analysis

amounts in thousands of dollars 2011

EVS

99h percentile portfolio economlc value drange plus basls and opüonallty risk

E¡R

- 100bps Shod< (Year l)
+ 100bps Shod<(Year1)

Limit>= -20/o of ndt ¡ntøÊsf ¡n@me öase caso

lrs2Jrr) (161,102)

tnnu-àíg,,nõ urn+/-2oo,ooo

(3r%)

3.3%

(7.2%'

7.1%

Assumptlons underlying EVS and EaR

The methodology to determine EVS is based on the requirements in the APRA Prudential Standard (APS 117
'Capital Adequacy: lntercst Rate ñsk in the Banking Book') lor interest rate risk in the banking book. This
method is based on a distribution of portfo utilising 6 years of interest rate history and a I year
holding period. The 99h percentile portfoli then cómpared to the cunent portfolio economic
value using the actual rates at 31 December2012.

The major assumptions that relate to the EaR measures for 31 December 2012 are:

. 100bps instantaneous rate shock change in net interest income measured over the next 12 months; and

. The change in interest rates applied to the savings acc,ounts is in line with modelled behaviour for non-
maturity accounts.

Other key assumptions used to measure EaR are:

. Forecast growth in each product based on the approved product budget growth;

. Forecast market rates and margins applied to each product;

. Contractual maturity and repricing characteristics; and

. Forecast maturity of new business volumes.

Foæign exchange risk

Foreign exchange exposure is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in exchange rates. Group policy
requires that all cunency risks are removed through hedgtng.

The IDOL Trust Series 2012-2 USD tranche issuance, while fully hedged economically using a cross-curency
swap, is not in an accounting hedge relationship.
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26. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial liabilities or take advantage of investment
opportunities at a reasonable cost and in a timely manner. Treasury is responsible for ensuring that the Group
has continuous acoess to funds in accordance with policies established and monitored by the Board, Risk
Committee and ALCO. The primary objective is to maintain sufficient liquidity in order to ensure safe and sound
operations.

The key objectives of the Group's liquidity management policy are to measure, monitor and report expected
liquidity flows and also to provide early waming signals of potential adverse developments, so that preventative
steps may be triggered.

The liquidity strategy of the Group has four primary components:

. The first component is management of day to day funding. The objec{ive is to ensure day to day funding
requirements are adequately spread to avoid concentrations. The Treasury departnent manages all
maturing cash flows and expected changes in core business funding requirements. This includes
replenishment of existing funds as they mature, expested withdrawals from retail savings accounts and
additional bonowings. Furthermore, access to the wholesale and capital markets is actively managed by
regular debt issues and investor relations maintenance;

. The second component is the maintenance of an appropriate mix of funding souroes. The Group aims for a
well diversified funding mix in terms of instrument types and fund providers. The Group has a broad base of
retail funding, wtrich mainly consists of personal and business savings accounts. Although individuals with
call accounts may withdraw their funds at any time, in aggregate they form a stable source of funding,

. The third component of the Group's liquidity strategy is to maintain a broad portfolio of highly marketable
assets that can be readily converted into cash to meet unexpected cash flows. The Group holds a diversified
portfolio of govemment, bank and other securities. These marketable assets can provide liquidity through
repurchase agreements or through sale; and

. The íourth component oíthe Group's liquidity strategy is to have adequaie and up to date contingency
funding plans and early waming liquidity triggers in place throughout the Group. The contingency funding
plans are established for addressing temporary and long term liquidity disruptions caused by a general event
in the market or a Group specific event. These plans ensure that all roles and responsibilities are clearly
deñned and all necessary management information is in place. The main objec{ive of the Group's
contingency funding plan and early warning liquidity triggers is to enable senior management to act
effeclively and efficiently at times of crisis.

The Group's liquidity policy has been developed in accordance with the liquidity management policies of ING
Groep NV and APRA prudent¡al standards.

The Group has continued to experience consistent access across the wholesale funding markets over the past
year. Response to the Group's debt issuance continued to be strong. At 31 December 20'12, approximately 69%
of the Group's funding was provided by retail sources (2011: 640/ol and 31% was provided by wholesale and other
sources (2O1'l:36%1.

At the end ol 2O11 following the release of the new rules text on liquidity risk management ('Basel lll') by the
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision ('Basel Committee") APRA released a drafr prudential standard on
liquidity (APS 210) as part of the coordinated global response to the Global Financial Crisis. ln future, APRA will
require banks to hold a buffer of liquid assets. The cunent intemal policy requires the group to maintain a buffer of
marketable liquid assets throughout the year. The level of liquid assets was $8.0 billion at 31 December 2012
(2O11: $6.2 billion).

ln addition to liquid assets the APRA (APS210) rules also focus on banks obtaining a prudent amount of long-
term ('stable') funding. The Group has incorporated that view in its liquidity framework through its Gore Funding
Ratio ('CFR'). The CFR is the ratio of available stable funding over required stable tunding. At the end of 2012 it

stands at 128% (201'l:137%) against a policy requirement o1100%.

In management's opinion, liquidity is sufficient to meet our present and expected requirements.
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26. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from failed or inadequate processes, people or systems or from
extemal events. Key areas of operational risk for the Group include fraud risk, information security risk,

compliance risk and process breakdown. The Group has implemented a framework that facilitates the
identification, assessment, measurement and control of operational risk across the business.

The Board and Risk Committee are responsible for establishing policy in this area and for the ongoing oversight
of operational risk. This process is supported by the NFRC.

The aim of the Operational Risk Management ('ORM") department is to support management of the business
lines (first line of defence) which is responsible for managing the Group's operational risks. This is done by
raising operational risk awareness and insight, increasing operational risk and loss transparency, improving early
waming information and allocating risk ownership and responsibilities. This contributes to more stable business
processes and lower operational risk costs.

Management

A comprehensive operational risk framework is in place and operating across the Group. The framework is split
into eight main activities and processes:

The Group's operational risk fiamework has been developed based on ING Groep NV standards and APRA
regulatory requirements.

ING Bank (Australia) Limited and controlled entities
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Rlsk management process Examples of risk management tools

Governance Established govemance committees
(Ìlear rnlcc and rasnnnsihilities

Objective setting Defined policy

Aooetite aliqned with strateoic obiectives

Event identification lncident reporting and analysis

External loss data consideretion

Risk assessment Risk and control self assessments

Scenario analysis

Business environment assessment

Risk response Risk reduction, avoidance, transfer or acceptance

Caoital for ooerational risk

Gontrol activities Generic and soecific controls

lnformation and communication Risk awareness programs

Risk reporting

Ooerational risk dashboard

Risk rnonitoring Action tracking

Key risk indicator reporting

Kev control testino
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26. R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

COMPLIANCE RISK

Compliance risk is defned as the risk of impairment of ING Group's integrity as a result of failure (or perceived
failure) to comply with relevant laws, regulations, ING Group policies and standards and the ING Bank Business
Principles.

The Compliance Rlsk Management ('CRM') function focuses on managing the risks arising fom laws, regulations
and standards whictr are specifc to the financial services industry. The function actively educates and supports
the business in managing the compliance risks including anti-money laundering, preventing terrorist financing,
conflicls of interests, proper sales and trading conduct and protection of customer interest.

ING Group separates compliance risk into four conduct-related integrity risk areas: client conduct, personal
conduct, organisational conduct as well as financial conduct. ING Group has a whistleblower procedure which
enoourages staff to speak up if they know of or suspect a breach of extemal regulations or intemal policies or
business principles.

GRM Frameworl<

The CRM framework cons¡sts of two key components:

¡ The CRM process

The process has five key activities canied out in accordance with the requirements of the framework:

A. ldentification of compliance risk obligations;

B. Risk assessment;

C. Compliance risk mitigation (includes training and education);

D. Compliance risk monitoring (includes action tracking); and

E. Compliance risk reporting (includes intemal events reporting and response).

. Advisory

Compliance officers proactively advise their CEO, management, local boards and committees, the next
higher level compliance officer, and employees on Compliance Risk, responsibilities, obligations and
concems.
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27. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Bank is an Authorised Deposit-taking lnstitution and is subject to regulation by APRA under the authority of
the Banking Act 1959. From 1 January 2008, APRA has set minimum regulatory capital requirements for banks
that are consistent with the Basel ll Accord issued by the Basel Committee. ING Direct has been in compliance
with the capital requirements imposed by APRA throughout the year. These requirements define what is

acceptable as capital and provide for standard methods of measuring the risks incuned by the Group. APRA has
set minimum ratios that compare the regulatory capital with risk weighted on and ofr-Balance Sheet assets for
credit and operational risks as well as mandating a charge for other risks that may or may not be easily
measured.

The Bank is also compliant with prudential capital ratios and capital buffers stipulated under Basel lll, which are
effective from 1 January 2013. The Bank chooses to hold capital in addition to prudential minimum levels by
maintaining capital buffers that are sufficient to absorb losses and increased regulatory capital under extreme but
plausible stress scenarios.

Regulatory capital is divided into Tier One and TierTwo capital. Certain deductions are made from the sum of
Tier One and Tier Two capital to anive at the Capital Base. Tier One capital primarily consists of shareholders'
equity plus retained eamings, less capitalised expenses and the general reserve for credit losses. Tier Two
capital primarily consists of redeemable preference shares (nil in2012) and the general reserve for credit losses
which incorporates the collective provision for impairment losses.

The Group actively manages its capital to balance the requirements of various stakeholders (including regulators,
rating agencies and the shareholder). This is achieved by optimising the mix of capital wfiile maintaining
adequate capital ratios at all times.

Active capital management

Some of the factors that affect the level of required capital during the normal course of business are:

. Risk profile and the volume of risk weighted assets;

. The extent oÍthe mismaich between the asset and liability duration;

. The expected change in interest rates in the near term; and

¡ The changes in investment strategy.

To support these business activities and market effects, the Group actively manages its capital. The main focus of the
Bank's capital management policy is to ensure the Group maintains an adequate supply of capital for its existing and near
term goals through anticipating when additional capital is required and ensuring an adequate buffer above regulatory
requirements is always maintained.

Crodit risk capltal

ln accordance with APRA's methodology, measuring credit risk requires one of a number of risk weights to be

applied to each asset on the Balance Sheet and to off-Balance Sheet obligations. The risk weights are applied
based on APRA's Basel ll Standardised Approach. ln addition to the Standardised Approach, the Bank also
calculates the risk weighted assets based on the Basel ll Advanced Approach under a parallel run regime for local
purposes and for consolidated results at Group level.

Operational risk capital

Risk Weighted Assets for operational risk is calculated underthe Basel ll Standardised Approach based on the
semi-annual changes in the Balance Sheet and lncome Statement as well as potentially requiring the Group to
hold additional capital for other risks it may deem significant.

Martet risk capltal

The Group holds sufñcient capital to cover the potential risks associated with interest rate risk in the banking
book. The Group measures this risk by ascribing a portion of the capital adequacy limit to cover the calculated
change in economic value from adverse movements in interest rates. The Group has implemented buffer and
trigger l¡mit structures to ensure that sufficient capital is maintained to meet unexpected changes in the risk profle
of the Group result¡ng from short term movements in market ¡nterest rates.
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Forccasting rcgulatory capltal requlrcmentr

The Group's capital management policy requires regular forecasts of the effect on the Group's capital position of
potential changes in credilrisk profile, market conditions, of expected changes in asset and liability volumes and

of any changes to the duration of the Balance Sheet. '

. Risk weighted assets - one of the major factors affecting the future capital requirement is asset growth as

reflectedlhrough measured risk weighted assets. The projection of risk weighted assetsis based on the risk
profile and bud-geted growth rates for retail and commercial loans and the strategic mix of wholesale assets

that may be presøibed at different times under the direction of ALCO'

¡ Market interest rates - volatility in market interest rates plays an important role in the interest rate risk inherent

in the Balance Sheet. The greater the volatility, the higher the potential move in rates over the future months

and therefore the greater the potential change in market value of the assets and liabilities. The Group uses

historical data to develop models to assess the potential impact of future interest rate changes on the market

value of assets and liabilities.

. Net duration of assets and liabilities - the longer the duration of an asset or liability, the greater the change in

market value for any given movement in market rates. The net duration of the Group's assets and liabilities

witl change as a resuil of both growth over time and also through the change in duration profile.

Surplus capital

Periodic scenario based stress tests allow the Bank to assess capital adequacy under plausible but severe

stressed conditions impacting the Balance Sheet across all risk types.

The Bank holds an amount of surplus capital over intemal policy requirements to ensure that the capital buffer

above the minimum capital requirement is sufficient to absorb unexpected events, which include unanticipated

movements in market interest rates, rapidly worsening credit conditions and unexpected operational risk events.

27. cAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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27. CAPTTALMANAGEMENT(CONTINUED)

Key Gapltal lndlcators
Con¡olldatod

amounts in thousands of dollaæ 2012

Qu¡-llfylng erpltal

Tlor I
Total equity

Adjust ton Available for sal€ reserve

Cash fow hedge reserue

General rcserve

Total adjustments

Dedudions

Tot¡l tlcr I quallfylng capltal

Tler 2

General reserve lor credit losses and collective provisloning

Available for sale reserve (45% of pre'tax amount)

Redeemable preference shares

Totel tlc? 2 quallfilng cepltal

Total quelfilng capltal

Total rl¡k .djultod ass.t3 and off€alence Sheet exposuruc

RlrI Welghtod Capltal Ratlo

28. ULTIMATE HOLDING ENTITY

3,234,334

(12,3901

¡11t,893

1138,057)

2,914,361

3,869

66,945

(82,266)

1109,75¡f)

(l,lll,6,ll)
(r 1,452)

(177,1811

2,983,939 2,725,728

139,935

7,gU

107,539

1,000,000

1,17,899 1 ,107,539

3,131,838 3,833,267

21,784.,328

12.8%

24,175,9U

15.9o/o

lNG Bank (Australia) Limited is the ultimate Australian holding company and its ultimate controlling entity is ING

Groep NV wùich is incorporated in the Netherlands.

29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Loans to entities in the wholly owned group

Aggregate amounts receivable comprise term loans, at-call loans, accrued interest end inter-company balances.
Inierest received was charged on normal commercial terms throughout the year. No security or guarantee has

been provided and no bad and doubtful debt provisions were raised during the year.

Bank

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012 201'l

Aggregate amounts reoeivable fom the ultimate conÙolling entity

Aggregate amounts receivable from related parlies in the wholly owned group

Total
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101,162

3,f¿193

151,616

395

¡!18,3¿5 't52,01',!
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29. RELATED PARTY DTSCLOSURES (CONTTNUED)

Loans from entitles ln the wholly owned group

Aggregate amounts payable comprise subordinated debt, redeemable preference shares (nil in 2012), certificates
of deposit, accrued ¡nterest and inter-company balances. lnterest was charged on subordinated debt and
certificates of deposits on normal commercial terms throughout the year. No security or guarantee has been
provided and no bad and doubtful debt provisions were raised during the year.

B¡nk

emounts in thousands of dollars 20't'l

Aggregate amounts payable to the ultlmate conbolllng entity

Aggregate amot¡nts payable to related partles in the wholly owned gmup

Tol¡l

578

3,730,299

I,008,105

2,209,825

3,?30,976

Other tran¡actlons with entltles ln the wholly owned group

The Bank paid fees for expenses incuned for services rendered on behalf of entities in the wholly owned Group.

Bank

amounts in thousands of dollars 2012

3.217.930

2011

Amounts pald or payable to the ulllmate contsolling entity

Amounts paid or payable to related bodies

Tot l

8,155

36

5,383

59

6,'lg0

Transacüons with the controlled entities

Aggregate amounts receivable comprise of at-call loans, residential mortgage backed securities and accrued
interest. lnterest received was charged on normal commercial terms throughout the year. No security or
guarantee has been provided and no bad and doubtful debt provisions were raised during the year.

Bank

amounts in thousands of dollars 201'l

Aggrcgate amounts æceivablefrom the conlmlled entities 2,E18

Loans to key management perconnel and rclated entlües

Loans have been provided to key management peßonnel and these loans r¡vere conducted in the normal course
of business and on terms applicable to the Group's personnel.

Other bansactions with key management perconnel and related enüties

Key management personnel and/or their related entities have entered into transactions of a domestic nature with
the Group. These transaclions include entering into mortgages and savings deposits which are on normal
commercial terms.

Key management personnel remuneration is disclosed in Note L
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Other Disclosures

30.

Bank

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

amounts in thousands of dollars 2011

Unu¡od

._ 332,0Qq

Av¡ll¡ble
33?,90Q

Unused

317,887

Available

317,887_Standby facilities-to¡elated.enllties _

The Bank has provided the following liquidity facilities to the Trusts:

. IDS Trust 2008-l: $286.9 million (2011: $286.9 million);

. IDOL Trust series 2O1O-1: $6.6 million (2011: $8.8 million);

. IDOL Trust series 2O1'l-1: $9.5 million (201'l: $12.8 million);

. IDOL Trust series 2011-2: $7.2 million (2011: $9.4 million);

. IDOL Trust series 2012-1: $9.2 million (2011: nil);

. IDOL Trust series 2012-2: $1 3.5 million (201 1: nil).

There are no contingent assets and liabilities at the consolidated level.

31. COMMITMENTS

lnevocable commitnents to extend credit at call include all obligations on the part of the Group to provide credit
facilities and bank accepted guarantees represent unconditional undertakings by the Group to support the
obligations of its customers to third parties.

Consolldated

amounts in thousands of dollars

Comm¡ùnents to extend c¡edlt

- inevocable comm¡tments to extend credit

- bank accepted guarantees

Tot¡l commlù¡ont to o¡ilond ctrdlt

Operaüng Leases - Land & Buildings'

Lease payments due:

- not laterthen 'l year

- later han 1 year and less than 5 yearc

- later than 5 years

lotel mlnlmum loele peymont

5,411,00:l

23,881

5,311 ,455

27,316

6,¡1i14,884

10,607

35,9¿12

5,338,771

9,900

41,528

.f,801

*Operating leases are the leases of the premises the Bank ocanpies at 140 Sussex Street (Sydney), 3 Reliance Drive

[uggerah),
6 Reliance Drive (fuggerah), 114 \r1tflliam St (Melboume), È12 Hurtle Parade, Mawson Lakes (Adelaide), 100 Edward StÌeet
(Brisbane) and 474 Munay Street (Perth).

32. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No subsequent events ortransact¡ons have occuned since the yearended 31 December 2012or are pending
that would have a material effect on the Financial Statements.
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Other lnformation

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

ln accordance with a resolution of the Directors of ING Bank (Australia) Limited, we state that:

ln the opinion of the Directors:

a) The Financial Statements and notes of the Company and consolidated entities are in accordanoe with the
Corporations Act 2001, induding;

i) giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2012 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date; and

ii) complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; and

b) The Financial Statements and notes also comply with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed
in Note 2; and

c) There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Group will be able to pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable.

On behalf of the Board

'/z
Chairman

Sydney
28February2Q13
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lndependent auditor's report to the members of ING Bank (Australia)
Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of ING Bank (Australia) Limited, which comprises the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2012, the income statement, the statement of changes in equity and
the cash flow statement for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and the dírectors' declaration of the company and the entities
it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2OO1 andf or
such internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ln Note 2, the directors
also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presenfafion of Financialstatemenfs, that
the financial statements comply with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibi lity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reascnable êssui'ance about whether the financial report is fi'ee from matei'ial misstatenrent.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. ln making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectíveness of the entity's
internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

lndependence

ln conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001. We have gíven to the directors of the company a written Auditor's lndependence Declaration, a
copy of which is included in the directors' report.
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Opinion

ln our opinion:

a. the financial report of ING Bank (Australia) Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act
20O7, including:

i giving a true and fair view of the company's and consolidated entity's financial position as at
31 December 2012 and of their performance for the year ended on that date;and

ii complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;
and

b. the financial report also complies with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed
in Note 2.

Steve Ferguson
Partner
Sydney
28 February 2013


